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HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. 
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Fax : (033) 4055 6863 
E-mail : hu!ho@hul.net.in 
CIN No.: L27120WB1947PLC015767 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 72nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the 
Company will be held on Monday, the 30th day of September, 2019 at 10.00 a.m. at the Registered 
Office of the Company at Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, 84/lA, Topsia Road (South), Kolkata-700046 to 

transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:- 

I. To receive, consider and adopt: 

a. the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March, 2019 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

11. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prakash Agarwal {DIN 00249468), who retires by 
rotation at this Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:- 

Ill. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

APPOINTMENT OF MRS. PREMLATA AGARWAL ASA DIRECTOR 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act') read with The Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification or re-enactment thereof), Mrs. Premlata Agarwal (DIN: 00752110), who is 
eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act signifying his intention to propose Mrs. 
Premlata Agarwal as a candidate for the office of the Director of the Company, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Director, whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation." 

IV. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

APPOINTMENT OF MRS. KIRAN DAROLIA AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {1the Act') read with The Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Schedule IV of The Companies 

Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and Regulation 25 
of the SEBI {listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mrs. Kiran 

Darolia (DIN: 08240886), who has submitted a declaration of independence under Section 
149{6) of the Act, Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Second 
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Amendment Rules, 2018 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is eligible for appointment as such and in 
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under 
Section 160 of the Act signifying his intention to propose Mrs. Kiran Darolia as a candidate 
for the office of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for an initial period of five years commencing from 
the conclusion of this AGM up to the conclusion of Seventy Seventh AGM." 

v. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. A.K. GHOSH AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule IV to The Companies Act, 2013 (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, Mr. A.K. 
Ghosh (DIN: 01424368), an existing Independent Director, who has submitted a declaration 
of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act, Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Second Amendment Rules, 2018 and Regulation 16{1)(b) of the 
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and whose current 
term of office of five years shall be completed on the conclusion of the ensuing AGM, be and 
is hereby reappointed as an Independent Director for a further period of five years from the 
conclusion of the ensuing AGM upto the conclusion of Seventy Seventh AGM, 
notwithstanding that Mr. A.K. Ghosh had attained the age of seventy five years as on t" 

April, 2019." 

Vl. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolutions as SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

POSTPONEMENT OF DATE OF REDEMPTION OF PREFERENCE SHARES 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, the 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for postponement of the date of 
redemption of 60,00,000, 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
issued to V.N. Enterprises Limited from gth January, 2019 to gth January, 2022." 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary be and is hereby 
authorized to all such acts, deeds and things as may be required in this connection." 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 
TRINITY PLAZA, 3RD FLOOR, 84/lA, TOPSIA ROAD (SOUTH), KOLKATA-700046 CIN:L27120\NB1947PLC015767 DATE: 30'" MAY, 2019 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD FOR HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
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[SHIKHA'4JAJ] COMPANY SECRETARY 



NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY 

NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 

commencement of the meeting. Members are requested to note that a person can act as 

proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty {SO) and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 25.09.2019 

(Wednesday) to 30.09.2019 (Monday) (both days Inclusive). 

3. Relevant Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 

special business is annexed hereto. 

4. The Notice of the AGM will be available at the Company's Website www.hul.net.in and on 
the website of the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) www.evoting.nsdl.com 

5. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Company is providing Members the facility to exercise their right to vote on 
resolutions proposed to be considered at the AGM by electronic means. The facility of 
casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other 
than venue of the AGM ("remote e-votlng"] will be provided by the National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL). 

6. The facility for voting through Ballot Paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 

able to exercise their right at the meeting through Ballot Paper. 

7. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

8. The remote e-voting period shall commence on 2th September, 2019 (9:00 am) and end 

on zs" September, 2019 (5:00 pm). During this period the Members of the Company as on 
the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2019, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The 

remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on 
a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently. 

9. The procedure to login to e-voting website consists of two steps as detailed 

hereunder:- 



Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-voting system 

a) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which 
is available under 'Shareholders' section. 

c) A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for 
NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

d) Your User ID details are given below: 

i) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL: 8 Character DP 
ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID (For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******). 

ii) For Members holding shares in demat account with CDSL: 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID (For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12***********"'**). 

iii) For Members holding shares in Physical Form: EVEN Number followed by 
Folio Number registered with the Company {For example if folio number is 
001 *** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***). 

e) Your password details are given below: 

i) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

ii) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the 'initial password' which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

iii) How to retrieve your 'initial password'? 

a. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held 
in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial 
password', 



b. lf your email ID is not registered, your 'initial password' is 
communicated to you on your postal address. 

f) If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the "Initial password" or have 
forgotten your password: 

i) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(lf you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

ii) "Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

iii) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address. 

iv) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 
the votes on the E-Voting System of NSDL. 

g) After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by 
selecting on the check box. 

h) Now, you will have to click on "login" button. 

i) After you click on the "login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system 

a) After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. 
Click one-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles. 

b) After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" 
in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

c) Select "EVEN" of Hindusthan Udyog Limited. 

d) Now you are ready fore-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" 
and also "Confirm" when prompted. 

f) Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed. 

g) You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print 

option on the confirmation page. 



h) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

l) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
vidhyabaid@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

j) In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990. 

9. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2019. 

10. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company 
after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 
2019, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

11. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members as on the cut-off date only 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM 
through ballot paper. 

12. Ms. Vidhya Baid, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership No. FCS-8882) has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting the entire process of polling (both voting 
electronically and through Ballot Paper) in a fair and transparent manner. 

13. The Chairman of Meeting shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on 
which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "Ballot 
Paper" for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-voting facility. 

14. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes 
cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, 
not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of 
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by 
him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on 
the Company's Website and the website of NSDL immediately after its declaration and 
shall also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges. 



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM NO. Ill 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on zs" September, 2018 had 
appointed Mrs. Premlata Agarwal (DIN: 00752110) as an Additional Director on the Board of the 
Company in terms of Section 161(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles of 
Association. In terms of the appointment, Mrs. Premlata Agarwal is liable to hold office upto the 
date of ensuing AGM. 

A notice in writing under Section 160 of The Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a 
Member signifying his intention to propose Mrs. Premlata Agarwal as candidate for the office of 
Director. 

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that considering the knowledge and experience of Mrs. 
Premlata Agarwal, her appointment as Director will be beneficial for the interest of the Company. 
Hence, the Board recommends that the Ordinary Resolution as set out in ltem No. Ill of the Notice 
be approved by the Shareholders. 

Except Mrs. Premlata Agarwal, Mr. V.N. Agarwal and Mr. Prakash Agarwal, no other Director or 
Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution. 

ITEM NO. IV 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on za" September, 2018 had 
appointed Mrs. Kiran Darolia (DIN: 08240886) as an Additional Director on the Board of the 
Company in terms of Section 161(1) of The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), the Company's 
Articles of Association and the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In 
terms of the appointment, Mrs. Ki ran Darolia is liable to hold office upto the date of ensuing AGM. 

A notice in writing under Section 160 of The Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a 
Member signifying his intention to propose Mrs. Kiran Darolia as candidate for the office of 
Independent Director. 

Declaration has been received from Mrs. Kiran Darolia that she meets the criteria of 
Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. Accordingly, the Board is of the 
opinion that Mrs. Kiran Darolia fulfils the conditions as specified in the Act and the Listing 
Regulations for appointment as an Independent Director. 

The Directors are of the opinion that considering the knowledge and experience of Mrs. Kiran 
Darolia, her appointment as an Independent Director will be beneficial for the interest of the 
Company. Hence, the Board recommends that the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. IV of 
the Notice be approved by the Shareholders. 

Except Mrs. Kiran Darolia, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 

ITEM NO. V 

The Members of the Company at their Sixty Seventh AGM held on 2ih September, 2014, 
appointed Mr. A.K. Ghosh (DlN: 001424368) as an Independent Director of the Company for a 



period of five years from the conclusion of said AGM upto the conclusion of 72nd (i.e. ensuing) 
AGM. In terms of Section 149(10) of The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), an Independent Director 
may be re-appointed for a second consecutive term of five years on the approval of Shareholders 
through Special Resolution, subject to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act. 

Further, with effect from r" April, 2019, Regulation 17(1A) of SEBl (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 mandates all Listed Companies to 
obtain shareholders' approval through Special Resolution for appointment/continuation of 
directorship of a Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy five years. 

Declaration has been received from Mr. A.K. Ghosh that he meets the criteria of Independence as 
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. Accordingly, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. 
A.K. Ghosh fulfils the conditions as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations for 
appointment as an Independent Director. 

Mr. A.K. Ghosh is having in-depth exposure to International Business and vast experience in 
overall Business Administration, The Board of Directors of the Company are therefore of the 
opinion that continuation of his services would be beneficial and essential for the interest of the 
Company. Hence, the Board recommends that the Special Resolution as set out in Item No. V of 
the Notice be approved by the Shareholders. 

Except Mr. A.K. Ghosh, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 
concerned or interested in the said resolution. 

ITEM NO. VI 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on l5t December, 2018 noted that 
the Company's 60,00,000, 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
allotted to V.N. Enterprises limited were due for redemption on gth January, 2019. 

In view of the brought forward unabsorbed accumulated losses and the losses in the current year, 
the Board of Directors decided subject to the approval of both the Equity and Preference 
Shareholder(s) to postpone the period of redemption of the said Preference Shares by three years 
to 9th January, 2022. The Board has received the written consent from the Preference 
Shareholder in this respect in terms of The Companies Act, 2013. 

The postponement would also require the approval of the Equity Shareholders as a Special 
Resolution. The Board therefore recommends that the Special Resolutions as set out in Item No. 
Vl of the Notice be approved by the Shareholders. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are concerned or 
interested in the said Resolution except to the extent of their Shareholdings in the Company. 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 
TRINITY PLAZA, 3RD FLOOR, 

84/lA, TOPSIA ROAD (SOUTH), 
KOLKATA-700046 
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DATE: 30'" MAY, 2019 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
FOR HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
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DISCLOSURE OF DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 

AGM PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI {LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

DIRECTOR PRAKASH A.K.GHOSH PREMLATA KIRAN 
NAME AGARWAL AGARWAL DAROLIA 

Date of Birth 14.07.1971 06.01.1941 29.01.1949 11.01.1959 

Date of 1st 09.12.1998 31.03.2007 28.09.2018 28.09.2018 
Appointment 

Qualifications B.E. (Mechanical) B. Com, LLB Graduate Graduate 

No. of shares 5,16,200 ... 1,79,625 ... 

held 

Nature of Having professional Having in-depth Having vast Having 

Expertise expertise in the exposure to experience in considerable 
Operations of the International overall Business experience 

Engineering Industry Business and vast Management & and expertise 

and wide experience experience in administration in Business 

in Global Marketing & overall Business Management 

Overall Business Administration 

Management 

including acquisitions 
and turnarounds. 

Other 1. WPIL Limited 1. Tea Time Limited 1. Northern 1. Tamilnadu 

Directorships 2. Bengal Steel 2. Neptune Exports Projects Ltd. Alkaline 

in Indian Industries Limited Limited 2. Tea Time Batteries Ltd. 

Companies 
3. Hindusthan Parsons 3. Orient Limited 

Limited International ltd. 3. Neptune 

4. V .N. Enterprises 4. Northern Exports ltd. 

Limited Projects Limited 4. Orient 

5. HSM Investments 5. HSM international 

Limited International Limited 

6. Macneill Electricals Private Ltd. 5. Hindusthan 

Limited Parsons Ltd. 

7. Spaans Babcock 6. HSM 

India Limited Investments 

Limited 
8. Morgan Finvest 

Private Limited 

9. Llve-Life Buildcon 

Private Limited 

10. Clyde Pumps India 

Private Limited 



Other In WPIL Limited: In Tea Time Ltd: -�-- --- 

Committee (a) Risk Management (a) Stakeholders 

Memberships/ Committee- Relationship 

Chairmanships Chairman Committee- 

(bl Stakeholders Chairman 

Relationship (bl Audit 

Committee - Member Committee- 

(c) Share Transfer Member 

Committee - Member (c) Nomination & 

{d) Corporate Social Remuneration 

Responsibility Committee- 

Committee - Member Member 

ln Neptune Exports 

Ltd: 

(a) Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee- 

Chairman 

(bl Audit 

Committee- 

Member 

{c) Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee- 

Member 

In Orient 

International Ltd: 

(al Audit 

Committee- 

Chairman 

(b) Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee- 

Member 

ln Northern 

Projects Limited: 

(al Audit 

Committee- 

Member 

(bl Nomination & 

Remuneration 

Committee - 

Member 



DIRECTORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 72nd Annual Report together with the Audited 
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 3151 March, 2019. 

COMPANY PERFORMANCE: 

2Dl8-2019 2017-20]8 

ANANCJAI. RESU.15 RS. IN LAKl-5 RS. IN LAKl-5 

Tatall!el.erue 2,111!.76 3,0l.1.78 

EBl10II 90.21 37428 

Less: Rnance Costs 140.47 146.84 

[Aapredation 11129 123.73 

Pratit before Tax (Pl!I} {16155) 103.71 

Less: Tax Expense 

Prati! after Tax (PAl) (16155) 103.71 

The EBITDA of the Company declined in the current year from Rs. 374.28 lakhs to Rs. 90.21 
Lakhs due to a sharp decline in the sale of its Products with the fixed administrative costs 
remaining at around same levels as last year. 

In view of the above losses, the Board of Directors of your Company has adopted measures to 
increase the business of the Company and for maintaining the operating costs at a minimum 
level. The Board Members are hopeful that the business of the Company shall become 
profitable in the succeeding years. 

DIVIDEND 

ln view of the brought forward unabsorbed accumulated losses and the losses in the current 
year, the Directors express their inability to recommend any dividend for the year under 
review. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is appended below:- 

A. BUSINESS 

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of Alloy and Stainless Steel Castings with 
stringent quality requirements required in Turbines, Metal Shredding, Earth Moving and 
Mining Equipment, Power Plants, Pumps, Valves, Compressors and other Heavy Engineering 
Industries. The Company's manufacturing unit is presently located in Nagpur. 



8. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & FUTURE PROSPECTS 

The key operational highlights of the Company has been:- 

• Development of Pump Casings in Super Duplex Stainless Steel grade. 

• Impellers, Bowl and bell in CD4MCuN Grade developed. 

• Development of 9.5 M/T single piece Discharge Bowl in Grey Cast Iron. 

• Operation of new VTL Machine. 

• Increase in Line molding capacities by modification of existing line. 

• Successful development of Creep Steel Castings. 

• Development of Duplex Stainless Steel Grade SA Castings. 

• Removal of Low Alloy and plain Carbon Steel Items so as to concentrate on making of 
only High Alloy Steel Castings (H.A.S.) with good margins. 

C. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Opportunities for these Industries exist (a) in the development and supply of high contribution 
items and (b) catering to the requirements of export markets. 

The risks and areas of concern for your Company are:- 

(i) Demand for Company's products in few critical segments only. 

(ii) Stagnancy in the Market Demand due to General Economic conditions. 

(iii} Heavy Dependence on Few Customers in the Export Market. 

(iv} Currency Fluctuations in adverse direction. 

(v) Fluctuations in raw material prices that can affect orders with no price variation clause. 

(vi) Pressure on Pricing. 

D. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

The Company has internal control procedures commensurate with the nature of its business 
and size of its operations. The objective of these procedures are to ensure efficient use and 

protection of the Company's resources, accuracy in financial reports and due compliance of 

statutes and Company policies and procedures. 

The Internal Audit function is conducted by a Senior Management Team of the Company. 

The adequacy of internal control systems are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board in 

its periodical meetings. 



E. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Industrial Relations were cordial during the year under review. There was no industrial 
relation related problem during the year. 

F. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

There were no significant change (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year) in terms of the Listing Regulations in the Operating and Net Profit 
Margins of the Company. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The principles of good Corporate Governance through professionalism, accountability, 
transparency, trusteeship and control have always been followed by your Company and it has 
complied with all the applicable provisions of Corporate Governance as per the Listing 
Regulations. A separate Report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Annual Report 
2018�19 along with the Auditors' Certificate on its compliance in Annexure B. 

DIRECTORS 

Mrs. Premlata Agarwal and Mrs. Kiran Darolia were appointed as Additional Directors on the 
Board of the Company with effect from 28.09.2018 in terms of Section 161 of The Companies 
Act, 2013 ('the Act') and are liable to hold their offices, as such, upto the date of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting (AGM). Necessary Notices have been received from the Members of 
the Company under Section 160 of Act signifying their intention to propose the appointments 
of Mrs. Premlata Agarwal and Mrs. Kiran Darolia as the Directors. 

Mr. A.K. Ghosh, Independent Director, was appointed as such for a period of five years 
commencing from the 67th AGM of the Company and is liable to hold office upto the conclusion 
of the ensuing AGM. The Board Members are of the opinion that Mr. A.K. Ghosh be re­ 
appointed for a second consecutive period of five years in terms of Section 149{10) of Act, 
subject to the approval of the Members in the ensuing AGM. 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

Mrs. Ritu Agarwal resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from the close of 
28.09.2018. The Board Members are grateful to her for the services rendered by her during her 
association with the Company. 

The Brief Resumes of the Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the ensuing AGM is 
attached to the Notice of the said Meeting. 

NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD 

During the year 2018-19, Six (6) Board Meetings were held on so" May 2018, 14th August 2018, 
zs" September 2018, 14th November 2018, i" December, 2018 and iz" February 2019. 



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state 

as follows that:- 

(i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended ai" March, 
2019, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of the financial year and 
of the profit or loss of your Company for that period; 

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

(iv) the Directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 3151 March, 2019 
on a "going concern" basis; 

(v) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
and 

(vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such were adequate and operating effectively. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees and of 
Individual Directors by seeking inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance and 
considered and discussed in details the inputs received from the Directors. 

The aspects covered in the evaluation included the contribution to and monitoring of corporate 
governance practices, participation in strategic planning and fulfillment of their obligations 
including but not limited to their participation in the Board/Committee Meetings. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION 

The Independent Directors meet the criteria of being Independent (as prescribed in The 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations) and an lndependency Certificate from them 
have been obtained. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As provided under Section 92(3) of The Companies Act, 2013, the extract of Annual Return in 
Form MGT-9 pursuant to Rule 12 of The Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure C, as part of this Report. 



STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/s Salarpuria & Partners, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302113E) continue to 
be the Statutory Auditors of the Company as they were appointed as such at the last AGM of 

the Company for a term of 5 years commencing from the Financial Year 2017-18. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there 

under, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed a Practicing Company Secretary to 

conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial 

Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2019 is annexed herewith as Annexure D, as 
part of this Report. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with its Related Parties 

during the financial year were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. The 

transactions with Related Parties are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil 
Mechanism of Directors and Employees has been established, details of which are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Information required to be given pursuant to the provrsrons of section 197(12) of The 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure E. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO 

Particulars relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and Outgo, as required under section 134{3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the Annexure A. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

Your Company has formulated a Code of Conduct which applies to Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. Confirmations towards adherence to the Code during 

the Financial Year 2018-19 have been obtained from all the Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel in terms of the Listing Regulations and a declaration relating to 

compliance of this code during the year by all Board Members and Senior Management 

Personnel has been given by the Managing Director of the Company which accompanies this 

report. 



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company which has occurred between the financial year to which these Financial Statements 

relate and date of this report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors would like to thank shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, employees and 

all other business associates for the support given by them to the Company and their 

confidence in its management. 
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DATE: 30TH MAY, 2019 
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ANNEXURE-A 

PARTICULARS AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 

WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES TAKEN: 

The Company endeavors to control and reduce the energy consumption per unit of production. 
Energy Conservation Measures taken by the Company are> 

i) Replacement of motors/ pumps/ lighting with energy efficient models. 

ii) Optimization of electrical distribution system. 

iii) Use of mostly Induction Furnaces for melting instead of Electric ARC Furnace. 

iv) Rationalization of Pump Capacities and use of pumps with lower power ratings with the 

same efficiency. 

v) Use of duplex billets instead of Loose Scrap for manufacturing of Duplex Steel Castings. 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

Research and Development, as required, is carried on for improvement in the quality of the 
existing products and production process so as to bring them in line with the requirements of 
Customers or Industry Standards. Expenditure on Research and Development are charged 
under primary heads of accounts. 

The Company has not imported any new technology during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the Current Financial Year i.e. a" April, 2018. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

Foreign Exchange earned 
Foreign Exchange used 

PLACE: KOLKATA 

DATE: 30TH MAY, 2019 

Rs. 531.39 Lakhs I 
Rs. 3.17 Lakhs ! 

12.��A� 
DIRECTORS 



ANNEXURE B 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance:- 

1) THE COMPANY'S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY 

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, fairness, equity, 
transparency, accountability and commitment to values. Good Governance practices stem 
from culture and mind set of the organization. As stakeholders across the country 
evidence keen interest in the practices and performance of Companies, Corporate 
Governance has emerged on the centre stage. 

The Company has always believed in conducting its affairs in a fair and transparent manner 
and in maintaining the highest ethical standards in its dealings with all its constituents. It 
aims to constantly review its systems and procedures at all levels to achieve the highest 
level of Corporate Governance in the overall interest of all the Shareholders. 

The details of compliances made by the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 are 
as follows: 

2) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by the shareholders for overseeing the 
overall functioning of the Company. The Board provides and evaluates the strategic 
direction of the Company, management policies and their effectiveness and ensures that 
long term interests of the shareholders are being served. 

The Company's policy is to maintain an optimum combination of Executive and Non­ 
Executive Directors. As on 31.03.2019 the Company's Board consisted of Five Directors 
who are eminent Professionals with experience and expertise in Business, Industry, 
Finance and Law. 

Criteria for identification of core skill/expertise/competence of Board Members 

The Company aims to have a Board with an ideal combination of experience and 
commitment to ensure that it discharges its duties and responsibilities effectively. In this 
regards, the Board of Directors have identified the following core skills/expertise/ 
competencies that shall enable it to function effectively and are actually available with it:- 

(i) Leadership 

(ii) Familiarities with the business of the Company 

(iii) Exposure on various laws 

(iv) Expertise in Operations 

(v) Analytical skills 

(vi) Experience of administration and finance functions 



The Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2019 are as follows:- 

SI. Category No. of % of Total ! 

No. Directors 

1. Executive Director & Promoter - Managing Director 1 20.00 

2. Non-Executive Director & Promoter 2 40.00 

3. Non-Executive & Independent Director 2 40.00 

TOTAL s 100.00 

Details relating to the Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2019 are as follows:- 

SI. Name of the Category No. of No. of other No. of other 

Board other Board Board 

Members Directors hi Committee(s) Committee(s) 

ps of which he/ of which he/ 

In Indian she is a she is a 
Companies Member Chairperson 

1. Mr. V. N. Managing 9 8 --- 

Agarwal Director & 
' DIN:00408731 Promoter 

2. Mr. Prakash Non - Executive & 10 1 -- 

Agarwal Promoter 
DIN:00249468 

3. Mrs. Premlata Non - Executive & 6 -- -- 

Agarwal Promoter 
DlN:00752110 ( Woman Director) 

4. Mr. A. K. Non - Executive & 5 6 3 

Ghosh Independent 
DIN:01424368 

5. Mrs. Kiran Non - Executive & 1 -- -- 

Darolia Independent 
DIN:08240886 (Woman Director) 

I 

• The Committee Memberships/Chairmanships considers Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee only. 

• Mr. Prakash Agarwal is the son of Mr, V.N. Agarwal 

• Mrs. Premlata Agarwal is the wife of Mr. V.N. Agarwal. 

• The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any shares in the Company except for Mr. 
Prakash Agarwal and Mrs. Prem1ata Agarwal who respectively hold 5,16,200 and 

1, 79,625 shares in the Company. 



• In the opinion of the Board of Directors the Independent Directors fulfill the 
conditions as specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.and are independent of management. 

Details regarding the directorships of the Board Members in Listed Entities are given 
below:- 

SL. DIRECTOR NAME LISTED ENTITY NAME CATEGORY OF DIRECTORSHIP 

' 1. Mr. V.N. Agarwal a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Managing Director 
b) WPIL Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
c) Asutosh Enterprises Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
d) Bengal Steel Industries Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
e) Tea Time Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
f) Neptune Exports Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

' g) Northern Projects limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
h) Orient International Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

2. Mr. Prakash a) WPIL limited Managing Director 
Agarwal b) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

c) Bengal Steel Industries Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

3. Mrs. Premlata a) Northern Projects Limited Executive Director 
Agarwal b) Hindusthan Udyog limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

c) Tea Time Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
d) Neptune Exports limited Non-Executive & Promoter 
e) Orient International Limited Non-Executive & Promoter 

4. Mr. A.IC. Ghosh a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Independent 
b) Tea Time Limited Independent 

c) Neptune Exports Limited Independent 
d) Northern Projects Limited Independent 
e) Orient International limited Independent 

5. Mrs. Kiran a) Hindusthan Udyog Limited Independent 
Oarolia 

3) BOARD MEETINGS & AGM HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL VEAR 2018 -19 

(i) During the Financial Year 2018�19 Six Board Meetings were held on:- 

so" May 2018, 141h August 2018, 281h September 2018, 14th November 2018, 151 

December, 2018 and 12th February 2019. 

(ii) Attendance record of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the last AGM are as 
follows:- 



. 

Name of the Board No. of Board Attendance at the last 

Members Meetings Attended AGM held on 28.09.2019 

Mr. V. N. ll.aarwal 6 Yes 
Mr. Prakash Agarwal 4 Yes 
Mrs. Premlata Agarwal* 4 -- 

Mrs. Ritu Agarwal @ 2 No 
' 

Mr. A. K. Ghosh 6 Yes 
Mrs. Kiran Darolia $ 4 -- 

* Mrs. Premlata Agarwal was appointed on the Board of the Company with effect from 
28.09.2018. Hence her particulars, as furnished above, relate to period commencing from 
28.09.2018. 

@ Mrs. Ritu Agarwal resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from 28.09.2018. 
Hence her particulars, as furnished above, relate to period upto 28.09.2018. 

$ Mrs. Kiran Doralia was appointed on the Board of the Company with effect from 
28.09.2018. Hence her particulars, as furnished above, relate to period commencing from 
28.09.2018. 

4) BOARD MEETINGS 

i) The Company's Governance policy requires the Board to meet at least four times in 
a year with a time gap between any two Board Meetings not exceeding one 
hundred and twenty days. 

ii) In terms of Company's Corporate Governance Policy, all statutory, significant and 
material information (including compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 
Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non­ 
compliances) are placed before the Board to enable it to discharge its 
responsibility. 

iii) The Internal Guidelines for Board Meetings facilitate the decision making process at 
the Meeting of the Board in an informed and efficient manner. 

5) BOARD AGENDA 

Meetings are governed by structured Agenda. The Board Members in consultation with 
the Chairman may bring up any matter for the consideration of the Board. 

6) BOARD PROCEDURE 

{i) The Members of the Board are provided with the requisite information as required 
by Part A of Schedule II of Regulation 17(7) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 well 
before the Board Meetings and the same were dealt with appropriately. 



(ii) All Directors who are in various committees are within the permissible limits in 
terms of Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Directors from 
time to time have intimated to the Company their Memberships/ Chairmanships in 
various Committees in other Companies. 

7) POST MEETING FOLLOWUP SYSTEM 

The Governance process in the Company includes an effective post-meeting follow up, 
review and reporting process for action taken/pending on decision of the Board/Board 
Committees. 

8) SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors held a Meeting on 12th February, 2019 without the presence of 
any Non-Independent Directors and Members of Management wherein they {i) reviewed 
the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and (ii) assessed 
the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company 
Management and Board that was necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties. 

9) VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for the Directors and Employees which 
enable them to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The mechanism also provides 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/Employees who avail the 
mechanism. 

This functioning of this Policy is reviewed by the Audit Committee and it is ensured that no 
employee is denied access to the Committee. 

10) COMMITTEES OF THE BDARD 

Currently there are three Board Committees - the Audit Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Terms of 
reference of the Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. 
Meetings of each Board Committee are convened by the respective Committee Chairman. 
Signed Minutes of Board Committee Meetings are placed at the Board Meetings for the 
information of the Board. 

i) AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee of the Board, inter alia provides re-assurance to the Board on the 
existence of an effective internal control environment that ensures:- 



(a) Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosures of 
its financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, 
sufficient and credible. 

(b) Compliance with listing and legal requirements concerning financial 
statements. 

{c) Recommending to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of Statutory 
Auditors, fixation of their Audit F'ees and approving payments made for any 
other services rendered by them. 

(d) Reviewing with the Management the Quarterly and the Annual Financlal 
Statements before submission to the Board for approval. 

(e) Reviewing with the management the performance of the Statutory Auditors 
and the adequacy of internal control function. 

(f) Discussion with the Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about 
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussions to ascertain 
any area of concern. 

(g) Reviewing the Internal Audit function and the progress in the implementation 
of recommendations contained in the Internal Audit Report. 

(h) Efficiency and effectiveness of operations. 

{i) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

{jJ Reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of 
disclosures 

(k) Compliance with all relevant statutes. 

(I) Approval of Company's Related Parties Transactions. 

(m) Reviewing the functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism. 

The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31.03.2019 is as follows:- 

Name of the Director Chairman/ Member Category 

Mr. A. K. Ghosh Chairman Non-Executive & Independent 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal Member Non-Executive & Promoter 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia • Member Non-Executive & Independent 



During the Financial Year 2018-19 Four Audit Committee Meetings were held and 
the Attendance of the Members at the said Meetings is given below:- 

Name of the Director No. of meetings attended 

Mr. A. K. Ghosh 4 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal 4 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia * 3 

-- 

* Mrs. Kiran Darolia was appointed as the Member of the Audit Committee with 

effect from 28.092018. Hence, her details, as furnished above, pertain to period 

commencing from 28.09.2018. 

ii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITIEE 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversees redressal of Shareholders 
grievances relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of Annual Report etc. 

The said Committee was reconstituted on 12.02.2019 and consists of Mr. AK. 
Ghosh, Mr. Prakash Agarwal and Mrs. Kiran Darolia. Mr. A.K. Ghosh is the Chairman 
of the said Committee. 

Ms. Shikha Bajaj, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the 
Company. 

During the year ended 31st March 2019, no complaints/queries were received and 
no complaint/query was pending to be resolved as on 31st March, 2019. 

iii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITIEE 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee involves:- 

(a) Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of Director and recommend to the Board a policy 
relating to the remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel. 

(b) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 
appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down 
and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

(c) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent 
Directors and Board of Directors. 



The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 
31.03.2019 was as follows:- 

Name of Director Chairman/Member 

Mr. A. K. Ghosh Chairman 
Mr. Prakash Agarwal Member 

Mrs. Ki ran Darolia * Member 

* Mrs. Kiron Doralia was appointed as a Member of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee with effect from 28.09.2018. 

During the Financial Year 2018-19 one Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Meeting was held on zs'' September, 2018. 

The Criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors is given below'- 

{a) Updated on skills, knowledge, familiarity with the Company, its business 
and the external environment in which it operates. 

(b) Participates in development of strategies. 

{c) Committed to the fulfillment of Directors obligations and fiduciary 
responsibilities. 

(d) Quality of analysis and judgment related to progress, opportunities and 
need for changes. 

{e) Contributes adequately to address the top management issues. 

(fl Considers adequately before approving any Related Party Transactions. 

{g) Acts within authority and assists in protecting the legitimate interests of 
Company, Shareholders and its employees. 

(h) Ensures that vigil mechanism has been properly implemented and 
monitored. 

(i} Reports concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 

{j) Does not disclose confidential information, commercial secrets, 
technologies, unpublished price sensitive information unless such disclosure 
is approved by the Board or required by law. 

Details of Remuneration paid to Mr. V.N. Agarwal as Managing Director during the 
year 2018-19 are as follows:- 

Salary Perquisites Total 

Rs. 30,00,000/- ---------- Rs. 30,00,000/- 



Apart from Sitting Fees, no other remuneration is paid/payable to the Non­ 
Executive Directors. Sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the 
financial year ended ar" March 2019 were as follows:- 

Name of the Director Sitting Fees paid I 

Mr. Prakash Agarwal Rs. 4,000/- 

Mrs. Premlata Agarwal* Rs. 4,000/- 

Mrs. Ritu Agarwal@ Rs. 2,000/- 

Mr. A. K. Ghosh Rs. 6,000/- 

Mrs. Kiran Darolia * Rs. 4,000/- 

* Sitting fees paid to Mrs. Premlata Agarwal and Mrs. Kiron Doralia pertains to 
Board Meetings attended by them post their appointment as Board Members on 

28.09.2018. 

@ Sitting fees paid to Mrs. Ritu Agarwal pertains to Board Meetings attended by 

her prior to her resignation as Board Members, effective from 28.09.2018. 

11) GENERAL MEETINGS 

i) Details of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the last three years are as under:- 

Financial Year Location Date Time 

2017- 2018 Registered Office at: zs" September, 2018 lOa.m. 
Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, 

2016- 2017 84/lA, Topsia Road (South), 26tn September, 2017 lOa.m. 

2015 -2016 Kolkata-700046. 29th September, 2016 lOa.m. 

ii) Whether any Special Resolutions were 
passed in the previous Three AGMs 

Yes. 

At AGM held on 28.09.2018 

a) Reappointment of Mr. V.N. Agarwal 
as Managing Director for a period of 3 
years commencing from 01.01.2018 

At AGM held on 26.09.2017 

a) Postponement of date of redemption 
of 10% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

b) Making of Loans, Investments and 
Guarantees in terms of Section 186 of 
The Companies Act, 2013. 



iii) 

iv) 

v) 

Whether Special Resolutions were put 
through Postal Ballot last year 

Are Special Resolutions proposed to be put 
through Postal Ballot this year 

Procedure to be followed for Postal Ballot 
(if applicable) 

No 

Yes 

In accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules made thereunder. 

12) DISCLOSURES 

i) There are no materially significant transactions with the Related Parties that may have 
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large, except as disclosed in the 

Notes to the Financial Statements. 

ii) No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 
SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last 

three years. 

iii) Your Company has a well laid out Code of Conduct and Business Ethics for the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel. It is one of the best means for increasing the 
transparency in the working of the Companies. The Board Members and the Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company adhere to this principle and compliance with the 
same is affirmed by each of them annually. 

iv) The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Corporate Governance, which 

reflects in this Report. 

v) The Members of the Company at their AGM held on 26.09.2017 had authorized the Board 
of Directors to fix the remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors in consultation with 
them. Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and after consulting the 
Statutory Auditors, the Board of Directors have approved Rs. 3,20,000/- towards 
remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors for the services rendered by them during 
the Financial Year 2018-19. 

13) MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS 

(i) Quarterly Results: - Quarterly Results were announced within a period of 45 days from the 
end of the relevant Quarter (except for the last quarter) and were published in The 
Financial Express (English) and Ekdin (Bengali) Newspapers. In place of the results for the 
last quarter, the Company opted to submit the Audited Financial results for the entire 

financial year. 

{ii) Annual Reports: - Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report, Auditors' Report and other 
important information are circulated to members and others entitled thereto. 



(iii) Website: - The Quarterly Results are displayed on the Website of the Company 
(www.hul.net.in). 

{iv) Official News Releases: - Official News Releases, if any, are displayed on the Website of 
the Company. 

{v) Displays, Presentations etc: - Displays, presentations etc are not made to Institutional 
Investors/Analysts and hence not displayed on the Company's Website. 

14) GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION 

{i} Company Registration Details 

The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal. The Corporate Identification 
Number (CIN} allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 
L27120\NB1947PLC015767. 

(ii) Annual General Meeting to be held - Day, Date, Time and Venue: 

SI. No. Particulars Remark 
A. Day Monday 
B. Date ao" day of September, 2019 
c. Time 10.00a.m. 
D. Venue Registered Office at: 

Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, 
84/lA, Topsia Road (South), 
Kolkata- 700046. 

(iii) Financial Calendar for the Year 2019 - 20 

SI. Particulars Remarks 
A. 1st Quarter ending 30tn June, 2019 Before 14111 August, 2019 
B. 2" Quarter and Half-year ending so" Before 14111 November, 2019 

September, 2019 
c. 3rd Quarter ending 31st December, 2019 Before 14th February, 2020 
D. a" Quarter and Annual Results for the year Before 30111 May, 2020 

ending 31st March, 2020 

(iv) 

(v) 

Dates of Book Closure: 

Dividend payment date: 

25.09.2019 to 30.09.2019 
(Both days inclusive for the purpose of AGM) 

Not applicable since no dividend has been recommended for 
the year ended 3151 March, 2019. 

(vi) Name of the Stock Exchanges at which Equity Shares are listed and Scrip Code assigned 
to the Company's shares at the respective Stock Exchanges: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:- 



1. The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 251h Floor, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 
Scrip Code: 513039 

2. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) 
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700001 
Scrip Code: 18142 

The listing fees for the Financial Year 2019-20 are being paid to both the Stock Exchanges. 

{vii) Market Price Data: 

There were no restrictions on trading in shares of the Company by any Authority. 
Moreover, there was no trading of the shares of the Company at the BSE and CSE during 
the year ended 31$1 March, 2019. 

(viii) Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: 

M/s Link lntime India Private Limited are the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of 
the Company. 

Shareholders may address all their correspondences/queries relating to Dematerialization 
of Shares, transfer/transmission of physical securities, change of address, non-receipt of 
dividend or any other query relating to the Shares of the Company to them at the below 
mentioned Address:- 

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Fort Burlow, 59C, Chowringhee Road, 3rd Floor 
Room No. 5, Kolkata - 700020. 
Tel : 033 2289 0540 

Fax No: 033 2289 0539 

E-mail ID :  kolkata@linkintime.co.in 

{ix) Share Transfer System: 

All work relating to transfer of Physical Shares are processed by the Company's RTA at 
their above mentioned Address. 

The same are registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt if 
the documents are clear in all respects. 

In terms of the listing Regulations, the Company obtains half yearly Certificates from a 
Company Secretary in practice for due compliance of share transfer formalities. 

(x) Dematerialization of Equity Shares:- 

The Equity Shares of the Company are admitted with Central Depository Services (India) 
limited (CDSL) and National Securities Depository limited (NSDL) for enabling the 

Investors to hold and trade in the shares of the Company in dematerialized form. 



The ISIN Number as activated by both CDSL and NSDL in respect of our Equity Shares is 
INE582K01018. 

As on 31st March, 2019, 55,26,560 Equity Shares representing 77.01% of the Company's 
Total Equity Shares were held in dematerialized form. 

(xi) Distribution Schedule: 

The Distribution Pattern of the Equity Shares of the Company as on 31st March, 2019 is 
given below:- 

SI. No. of Equity No. of I % of total No. of %of 
No. Shares held Holders I holders Shares Shareholding 

1. 1 - 5000 11 21.15 5,313 0.07 

2. 5001 - 10000 2 3.84 19,052 0.27 

3. ' 10001 50000 25 48.08 6,69,593 9.33 - 

4. 50001 - 100000 2 3.84 1,15,267 1.61 

5. 100001 - 500000 I 5 
' 

9.62 11,76,225 16.39 

6. 500001 - above 7 13.47 51,91,275 72.33 

Total 52 100.00 71,76,725 100.00 

(xii) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2019:- 

Category No. of Equity Percentage of 

' 
Shares held holding I 

A. Promoters' holding : 

1. Indian Promoters 53,79,910 74.96 

Sub-Total 53,79,910 74.96 

B. Non-Promoters' holding : 

1. Institutional Investors ---- ---- 

2. Others: 

-- Corporate Bodies 1,73,117 2.41 
. 

-- Indian Public 16,23,698 22.63 

Sub-Total 17,96,815 25.04 

GRAND TOTAL 71,76,725 100.00 

(xiii) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion dates 
and like impact on Equity: 

NOT APPLICABLE [The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other 
Convertible Instruments] 



(xiv) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 

NOT APPLICABLE [The Company has got no significant exposure in respect of commodity 
price risk or foreign exchange risk and has not undertaken any hedging activity] 

(xv} Plant Locations: 

A-1/2, Butibori Industrial Area, Ruikhairi, MIDC-Butibori, Dist Nagpur- 441122 

(xvi} Address for correspondence: 

Shareholders should address their correspondence to the Company's RTA at their above 
mentioned Address or to the Secretarial Department of the Company at the following 
address:- 

HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, 
84/lA, Topsia Road (South), 
Kolkata - 700046 Tel : 033 4055 6800/6808 
Fax No: 033 4055 6863 
E-mail ID :  kkg@hul.netin 

The above report has been placed before the Board at its Meeting held on so" May, 2019 and the 
same was approved. 

PLACE: KOLKATA DATE: 30TH MAY, 2019 DIRECTORS 
DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Board Members and the Senior 
Management Personnel affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the Financial Year 2018- 2019. 

FOR HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

PLACE:KOLKATA DATE: 30TH MAY, 2019 ���AL] MANAGING DIRECTOR 



SRlRRPURIR & PARTNERS 
Chartered Acecentants 

Tel. Address: "Checkchan(C)" 
Cal. Office : 2237 5400/5401 

: 2236 0560/4562 
Fax: (91) (033) 2225 0992 
E-mail : sa!arpuria.jajodia@redlffm.:::Lc::im 

office@salarpuriajajodla.com 

7 CHITTARANJAN AVENUE. KOU<ATA- 700 072 
BRANCH : 4th FLOOR, �SALARPURlA WINDSOR- 3 ULSOOR ROAD, BANGALORE - 560042 

ALSO AT: 1008, CHIRANJ\Vl TOWER. 43, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHl·110019, TELEFAX: 2623 3894 

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To the Members of Hlndusthan Udyog Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Hindusthan Udyog 
limited (the "Company") for the year ended March 31st, 2019, as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 
27, clauses (b) to (I)· of Regulation 46(2) and paras· C! & D of Sc;hedule V to the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

('LODR'). 

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibllity of the 
Company's Management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and Implementation 
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the complianC:e of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the Financial Statements of 
the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
we certify that the Company has compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated In the aforesaid provisions of LOOR. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Olartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Regn. No. 302113E 

Nihar Ranjan Nayak. 

"-'>·l'·­ 
Chnrtcred Accountant 

Me:nbershi9 No.·57076 
r1(�rtn0" 

Place: Kolkata. 
Date ; 30.05'.2019- 



ANNEXURE C 

FORM NO. MGT- 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of The Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

1. CIN L27120'A'Bl947PLC015767 

2. I Registration Date 3rd September 1947 
' 

3. Company Name Hindusthan Udyog Limited 

4. Category/Subcategory of Company Indian Company limited by Shares 

5. Address of Registered Office & Contact details Trinity Plaza, 3ra Floor, 

84/lA, Topsia Road (South), 
Kolkata - 700046 

Ph: 033 4055 6800 

6. Whether listed Company Yes 

7. Name, Address and Contact details of RTA Link lntime India Private Limited 

Fort Burlew, 59C Chowringhee Road, 

3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700020 
Tel : 033 2289 0540 
Fax No: 033 2289 0539 
E-mail I D :  kolkata@linkintime.co.in 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

51. No. Name & description of main NIC code of % to Total Turnover of 
products Product Company 

1. Alloy Steel Castings 73259920 100% 

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

SI Company Name & Address CIN Holding/ %of Applicable 
Subsidiary/ shares section 
Associate held 

1 WPIL Limited L36900'A'B1952 Associate 39.54% 2(6) 
Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, PLC020274 Company 
84/lA, Topsia Road (S), 
Kolkata - 700046 

2 Spaans Babcock India Ltd. U29219'A'B1993 Associate 25.00% 2(6) 
Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, PLC058017 Company 
84/lA, Topsia Road (51, 
Kolkata - 700046 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

SI Particulars of Remuneration Managing 

Director 

Total (Rs.) 

1 Gross Salary 

(al Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 30,00,000 

(b) Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 1961 --- 

(c) Profits in lieu of Salary u/s 17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 --- 

2 Stock Option --- 

3 Sweat Equity --- 

4 Commission --- 

5 Others --- 

TOTAL (A) 30,00,000 

B. Remuneration to other Directors: 

Particulars of Remuneration Directors' name Total 

Prakash Premlata Ritu A.K. Ki ran (Rs.) 

Agarwal Agarwal* Agarwal@ Ghosh Darolia 

Independent Directors 

- Fees for attending Board --- --- --- 6,000 4,000 10,000 

Meetings 

- Commission --- --- --- --- --- --- 

- Others --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Total (1) --- --- --- 6,000 4,000 10,000 

Other Non-Executive Directors 

- Fees for attending Board 4,000 4,000 2,000 --- --- 10,000 

Meetings 

- Commission --- --- --- --- --- --- 

- Others --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Total (2) 4,000 4,000 2,000 --- --- 10,000 

Total (1+2) 4,000 4,000 2,000 6,000 4,000 20,000 

* Fees paid to Mrs. Premlata Agarwal are for the Board Meetings held and attended by her during her 
tenure commencing from 28.09.2018. 

@ Mrs. Ritu Agarwal resigned from the Board with effect from 28.09.2018. Hence, Fees paid to her is 

for the Boord Meetings held ond attended by her upto the soid date. 



C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 

SI Particulars of Remuneration Company 
Secretary Total (Rs.) 

1 Gross Salary(*) (a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 3,11,789 (b) Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 1961 --- 

(c) Profits in lieu of Salary u/s 17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 --- 

2 Stock Option --- 

3 Sweat Equity --- 

4 Commission --- 

5 Others --- TOTAL (A) 3,11,789 

* The Company Secretary was appointed with effect from t" December, 2018. Hence, remuneration, 

as stated above, is for the period from 1st December 2018 to si" March 2019. 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal 

Companies Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ made, if any Act Punishment/ Court] (give details) 
Compounding 
fees imposed A.COMPANY 

Penalty 

Punishment NONE 
Compounding B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty 

Punishment NONE 
Compounding C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty 
Punishment NONE 
Compounding 

PLACE: KOLKATA DATE: 30'" MAY, 2019 

���OARD 
T\'""-""' ..WC\ }\�uoc;f DIREC11)RS 



Office : Mercantile Building, 
9/12 Lalbazar Street, Block E, 3rd floor 

Room no.7A,Kol-1, Mob -9883046454 

Email:guptarinku l 23@gmail.com 

Secretaries 

Rinku Gupta &Associates 

Form MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2019 

{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rufe 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members of 

Hindusthan Udyog Limited 

Trinity Plaza, 3rd Floor, 84/lA, Topsia Road (South), 

Kolkata -700046 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provrsrons and 

adherence to good corporate practices by HINDUSTHAN UOYOG LIMITED (hereinafter called the 
"Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, Papers, Minute books, Forms and Returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board process and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter;- 

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the 
applicable provisions of:- 

(i} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation} Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under 
(Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'J:- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 {Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 



b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during audit 
period); 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not 
applicable to the Company during audit period); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulatlcns, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 
(Not applicable to the Company during audit period); 

(vi) There are no such laws that are specifically applicable to the Company with respect to the 
sector in which it is operating. 

2. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:- 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and The Securities and Exchange Board of 

(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) {Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above. 

3. We further report that: 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board that took place during the year under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act; 

(b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation of the meeting; 

(c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

Disclosure 
India 



4. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

FOR RINKU GUPTA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

PLACE: KOLKATA 
DATE: 30'" MAY, 2019 

RINKU GUPTA 
COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTISE 

FCS-9237, CP NO. 9248 



ANNEXURE E 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

(a} Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of Company's 

employees of the Company for the financial year. 

SL. DIRECTOR NAME DESIGNATION RATIO TO MEDIAN REMUNERATION 

1 Mr. V.N. Agarwal Managing Director 6.06 

The Remaining Directors of the Company only received Sitting Fees for attending the Board 

Meetings and accordingly their remuneration and ratio of same to median remuneration are 

very negligible, hence not reported separately. 

(b) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and CEO, during the Financial Year 

SI. Name Designation Remuneration Remuneration Increase in 

paid FY 2018-19 paid FY 2017-18 remuneration 

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

1 Mr. V. N. Managing 30.00 16.50 13.50 

Agarwal Director 

The Increase in remuneration of the Managing Director compared to last year was on account 

of increase in his remuneration on reappointment effective from 01.01.2018. 

There was no increase in the remuneration of the Other Directors of the Company as they are 

not paid any remuneration except for Sitting Fees for attending the Board Meetings. 

(c} The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employee during the Financial Vear 

was around 5% 

(d} The number of Permanent employees on the rolls of the Company is 119. 

(e} Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and whether there are 

any exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial remuneration. 

The average annual increase in the salaries of employees during the year was 5% and the 

same was on account of yearly increments. However, the increase in managerial 

remuneration is not done annually and is taken up at the time of reappointment which is 

generally once in three years. There were no exceptional circumstances for increase in 

managerial remuneration. 

PLACE:KOLKATA 
DATE: 30TH MAY, 2019 



SALARPURJA & PARTNERS 

7, CHITTARANJAN AVENUE, 

Kolkata 700 072 

Phone No.2237 5400 / 5401 
Fax No. : (033) 2225 0992 

E-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com 

'"1llf\lDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 

'  ltiALANCE SllEET, STATEMENT OF PROFIT & 
' l,OSS, Ci\.SH FLOVl STATEMENT AND S'l'ATEMENT 
• 
i i'JlF (!l-Xl��GES IN EQUITY l<'OR THE YEAR ENDED I 31 ST M:A."'ii?.CH, 2019 



Salarpuria & Partners 
CHARTEREDACCONTANTS 

7, C R AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072 

Phone: 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410 
website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com 

e-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@red1ffmail.com 
office@salarpuriajajodia.com 

Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To The Members of Hindusthan Udyog limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Hindusthan Udyog Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss 
{including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Jn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its loss, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We> believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial Statements: 

(a) Note No. 2 to the Financial Statements which describes that no provision for amortization has been 
made for long term Leasehold Land at Durgapur. 

(b) The company filed a lawsuit against Mahanadi Coalfields Ltd. For recovery of� 91.93 lacs at Cuttack 
High court for which no provision has been made in the accounts. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, and Shareholder's 

Information, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statement. 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant of the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 'are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of user taken on the basis of these J�Flii'sacial 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the Annexure 'A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

(cl The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure-8". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

{i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS 
Financial Statements - Refer Note 24.1 to the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

(ill) There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 
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Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2019 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date 

to the members) 
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanations 
given to us, we state that: 

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 

(bl As explained to us, the Fixed Asset, according to the practice of the Company, are been physically 
verified by the management at reasonable intervals, in as phased verification programme, designed to 
cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Fixed 
Assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies 
between the books records and the physical Fixed Asset has been noticed. 

{c) The title deeds of Immovable Properties are held in the name of the Company. 

ii) The Management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval and in 
respect of stocks with third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of Inventory as compared to the book 
records. 

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, limited liability partnerships, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence comment on paragraph {iii) of 
the said Order is not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 
applicable, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security made. 

v) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no such deposits taken by the 
Company, for which directives issued by the Reserve Bank of Jndia and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 2015, with regard to deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government 
under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the activities carried on by 
the company. Hence, a comment on paragraph (vi) of the said Order is not applicable, 
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According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally not regular in 
depositlng undisputed Statutory Dues like Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, fncome-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Goods & Service Tax and 
other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and there ls no outstanding 
statutory dues as at 31.03.2019 for the period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(b) According to information and explanation given to..us by-the management, there were no statutory 
dues payable in respect of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise 
or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute save and except: 

Name of the statute Nature of Amount (f Related Year Forum In which Dispute Is Pending 
dues in lacs) 

West Bengal Sales Tax Assessed 414,263 zoos-zccs WBCT(A/R) Board 
Act,1994 Dues 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 181,067 2004-2005 WBCT(A/R) Board 

Dues 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 1,634,285 1998·1999 Registrar Maharashtra Sales Tax 
Dues Tribunal, Mumbai 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed S,926,481 1999-2000 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues Tax{Appeal), Nagpur 

Bombay Sales Tax Act,1959 Assessed 1,044,631 2000-2001 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 
Dues Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 1,389,004 2000-2001 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 
Dues Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 1,202,194 2001-2002 Registrar Maharashtra Sales Tax 

Dues Tribunal, Mumbai 

Bombay Sales Tax Act,1959 Assessed 949,067 2002-2003 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues Tax(Appeal), Nagpur 

Central Sales Tax Act,1956 Assessed 390,538 2002-2003 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Dues Tax(Appea/J, Nagpur 

Total 13,131,530 I I 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on basis of examination of records of the 
company, the company has not defaulted ln repayment of loans or borrowings to financial instftutions, 
banks. The Company has not taken any loan from government and has not issued debentures. 

ix. According to the audit procedures performed and Information and exp[anatlon given to us by the 
management, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public. offer or further public 
offer (indudlng debt Instruments) or term loans during the year, Hence, comment on paragraph (ix) of 

the said Order is not applicable. 

x. According to the Information and explanations given to us by the management, no fraud by the 
company or on the Company by its officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the course 

of our audit. Hence, comment on paragraph (x) of the said Order is not applicable. 
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xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of records of 
the company, the company has paid or provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

xii. tn our Opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, paragraph {xii) of the said Order is not 
applicable. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and such transactions have been disclosed in the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review. So, a comment on paragraph {xiv) of the said order is not applicable. 

xv. The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected 
with him. Hence, a comment on paragraph (xv) of the said Order is not applicable. 

xvi. The Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 
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Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2019 
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ANNEXURE '8' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act"). 

(Referred to Paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even 
date). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LIMITED 
("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management ts responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('JCAI'). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtaln reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Chartered Accountant 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 
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Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2019 
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V. Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Exceptional Items and Tax (Ill - tv) 

VI. Exceptional Item 

VII. Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V -VI) 

VIII. T<1x Expense: 

1 Current Tax 

2 Tax for earlier years (Net) 

3 Dderred Tax 

Net Current Tall (VII!) 

IX. Profit/(loss) for the Period (VII- VIII) 

x. Other Comprehensive Income fOf the period 

{Al (i) Item that will not be redanifled to Profit or Loss 

-Changes In Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument 

-Remeasurement of Oeflned benefit Plans 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will oot be reclassified to Profit or 

"'" (B) (I) Items that wlll be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

IV. Total Expenses 

EmpJoyee Benefit Expenses 

Finance Casts 

Depreciation aod Amortization Expense 

Other Expenses 

Directors 

(170,06) 114.70 

24,7 

(2.25) 1.45 

(2.2..5) l.4S 

1&24 

Place: Kolkata 

Dale : 3  � 0 S - '\A 1 q  

Xl. Total Comprehensiv!' Income fo: the period (IX +XI 

Earnings per Equity Share (for Continuing Operation): 

(1) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

- - ·  

C.h,:11 t-' : 

r"'\r,\,\,, 

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Notes 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SAlARPURIA & PARTNERS 

Oiartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No.302113E 
t, T"l'l-1 ,,..., r- ;·} . , 
i'\I L..:.::'... .. !.<i.� . •  :  .,.,, 
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HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD . :· · . . . 
cesn Flow Statement for the year ended 31.03.ZOl'J. , ' 

Ne� Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extra·Ordinary Items (161.SS) 103.71 
Adjustment for: 

Depreciation & Amortisation 111.29 l23.73 

Interest Expense 140.47 146.84 
Interest Income (58.54) (50.35) 
Provisions 16.50 (135.15) 

Dividend Income. {154.47) (77.38) 
Profit on sale of Shares {0.06) (2.71) 
(Profit}/loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.80) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (106.35) 107.89 

Movements In Working Capital : 

lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 170.44) 135.68) 

tncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current liabilities (105.36) 2,918.32 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 363.18 71.82 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivabies 154.83 567.07 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Financial uablntes 75.27 3.40 
{lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 437.17 (3,473.31} 

(Jncrease)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Assets (14.27) 28.88 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 0.00 23.30 

(lncrease}/Decrease In Other Current Financial Assets (14.47) (29.07) 

Cash generated from/lused in) Operadons 719.57 182.61 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) {28.82) (50.21) 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 690.75 132.40 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6.04 12.64 

Interest Received 11.45 4.33 

Dividend Received 154.47 77.38 

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (Net) 1.00 17.79 

Purchase of Property, ?!ant and Equipment (13.68) (54.52) 

Increase/Decrease ln Bank Deposits 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 159.27 57 61 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.03.1019 

Interest paid (92.10} (100.52} 

Repayment 

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings 11.58 

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (66.91} (148.83} 

Net Cash from Financing Activities (159.00} (237.77} 

Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 691.02 (47.76} 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 52.72 100.48 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 743.74 52.72 

Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

Balances with Bank 

Current Account 

Cash on Hand 

Total 

729.39 

14.34 

743.74 

44.24 

8.48 

52.72 

Note: 

(a) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary. 

(b) The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as per Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", as prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

FOR SALARPURIA & PARTNERS 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

�irl,11€11J·•/ii!.:r<oaj,2�r,�l ; ,-. : ·: :1: 

Place : Kolkata 

Date: '30-o5""r 1.,;:,1� 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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HINDUSTHAN_LJDYOG LTD , , , , : , , 
Notes to Stonda{one rinanc1ol Sratemenr As Ar 31.03 2019 

- ' '" \ ' ·", ' 

NOTE l (A}: CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company ("Hindusthan Udyog Limited") is an existing public company incorporated on 3rd September, 1947 

under the Indian Companies Act, and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its 

registered office at Trinity Plaza, 3rd floor, 84/lA, Topsia Road (South), Kolkata - 700046. The Company is engaged 

in manufacturing of Alloy and Stainless Steel Castings with stringent quality requirements required in Turbines, 

Metal Shredding, Heavy Earth Equipments, Pumps, Valves and Compressors and other Heavy Engineering 

Industries. It ls also engaged in manufacturing of Material Handling Equipments of varied nature required in the 
Mines, Cement Plants, Power Plants and Other General Engineering Sectors. The manufacturing units are located in 

Kolkata and Nagpur. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE") and Calcutta Stock. 

Exchange ("CSE"). The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees. 

NOTE 1 (BJ: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given 

below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 

statements. · 

I) BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog ltd ("the Company") comply in all material aspects with Indian 

Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), as 

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standard) Amendment Rules 2016 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises Income and expenditure on an 

accrual basis. The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except in case of 

significant uncertainties and except for the following: 

1 Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

1 Assets he!d for sale which are measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to self. 

3 Defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value. 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 have been approved by the Board of Directors 

of the Company in their meeting held on May, 1019. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 

cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 

cash or cash equivalents. As set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, the normal operating cycle 

cannot be identified and hence it is assumed to have a duration of twelve months. 

Use of Estimates and Management Judgement 

In preparing the financial statements in conformity wlth accounting principles generally accepted in lndta, 

management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and 

!iab!lities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. Any revision to such estimates is recognised in the period In which the same is determined. 
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Notes to Stc1ndalone Firumcici-Sunemerit As At 31 DJ.:20)..Q,.. , , , 

' ' ' . \, ' . , : .. 

IIJ Re11enue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideratipn received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as 

revenue are indusrve of excise duty and net of returns, allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and 

services tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when the 

amount of Revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the 

company. 

1 Sales are recognised when significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per the 

contractual terms or on dispatch where such dispatch coincides with transfer of significant· risks and 

rewards to the buyer. 

2 Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with 

reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to claim our fulfilled. 

Ill) Other Income: 

1 Interest Income on Financial Assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 

the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of the Financial Asset. When calculating the effective 

interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of 

the financial instruments. 

2 Dividends are recognized in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payments is 

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend wlll flow to the 

Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

3 Profit/Loss on sale of Investments is recognised on the contract date. 

4 Others: The Company recognizes other income (including rent and misc receipts) on accrual basis. 

However, where the ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is 

postponed to the extent of uncertainty. 

JV} Property
1 

Plant and Equipment 

a) Asset Class: 

i) Freehold Land is carried at historJcal cost including cost that is directly attributable to the acquisition of 

the land. 

ii) All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated 

depreciation/ amortization. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 

acquisition of the items. 

Property, plant and equipment held for use In the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for 

administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, ,1ess any subsequent accumulated 

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

The initial cost at cash price equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase 

price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing 

the assets to its working condition and location and present value of any obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use. Cost may also include effective portion on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency 

purchases of property, plant and equipment recycled from hedge reserve as basis adjustment.�� %,,v�1>}·� 
, "' 't. f "'-'.; c�rt rr: 
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In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct !abour, 
allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs and effective portion of cash flow hedges of 
foreign currency recycled from the hedge reserve as basis adjustment. 

Subsequent expenditure on major maintenance or repairs includes the cost of the replacement of parts of 
assets and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset is replaced and it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will be available to the Company, the expenditure is capitalised 
and the carrying amount of the item replaced is derecognised. Similarly, overhaul costs associated with major 
maintenance are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives where it is probable that future economic 
benefits will be available and any remaining carrying amounts of the cost of previous overhauls are 
derecognised. All other costs are expensed as incurred except the amortlsation value of durgapur leasehold 
land is not material. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or value of assets, over their estimated useful lives or, in the 
case of leased assets {including leasehold improvements), over the lease term if shorter. The lease period is 
considered by excluding any lease renewals options, unless the renewals are reasonably certain. Depreciation 
is recorded using the straight line basis. The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each 
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Each component of 
an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of that 
item is depreciated separately if its useful Hfe differs from the others components of the asset. 

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciated assets in property 
and accumulated depreciation accounts are retained fully until they are removed from service. 

The useful life of the items of PPE estimated by the management for the current and comparative period are 
in line with the useful life as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

VJ Disposal of Assets 

An item. of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

VI) Investment Property 

Investment properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both are stated in the balance sheet 
at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any 
gain or loss on disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
Transfer to, or from, investment property is done at the carrying amount of the property. 
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VJI) Foreign· currency Transactions 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment In which the entity operates ("the funcuonal currencv"]. The financial statements are presented 

In India Rupee which is HU L's functional and presentatlcn currency. 

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency traesacticn are recorded at foreign exchange rate on the date 

of transaction. 

b) Monetary items of currents assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the dose of financial 

year are revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year. 

c) The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuation in foreign exchange rate, 

in case of monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

V1Jt} Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of finished goods and work in 
progress includes raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Costs of 
inventories include the transfer from equity any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of 

raw materials. 

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost for Nagpur Unit and FIFO for Kolkata Unit. However, the 

same cost basis is applied to all inventories of a particular class. Inventories of stores and spare parts are 

valued at weighted average cost basis after providing for cost of obsolescence and other antidpated losses, 
wherever considered necessary. 

However, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories (finished goods, wcrk-tn­ 
progress) are not written down below the cost if the finished products in which they will be used are expected 

to sell at or below the cost. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of 

completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

IX} Financial Instruments 

A11 financial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset is under a contract 

whose term requires delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market 

concerned. Financial assets are initia11y measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those 

financial assets which are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) at inception. All recognised 

financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. 

Classification of Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified as 'equity instrument' if it is a non-derivative and meets the definition of 'equity' 

for the issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are 'debt instruments'. 

Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method 

Debt Instrume nts are measured at amortised cost if both of the follbwing conditions are met: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 

• 

cash flows; and 

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with 

interest recognised on an effective yield basis in investment income. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 

allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the 

estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on pomts paid or received that form an integral part of the 

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the 

debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Company may irrevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the 

amortised cost criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 

mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI} 

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 

cash flows and selling assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 

subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on Remeasurement recognised in other 

comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest 

calculated using the effective interest method is recognised In the statement of profit and loss in investment 

income. When the debt instrument is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement cf profit and loss account as a reclassification 

adjustment. 

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made {on an instrument·by-instrument basis) to designate 

investments in equity instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. 

A financial asset is held for tradfng if: 

• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of se!ling lt in the near term; or 

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company 

manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit·taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee. 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCl are inltia!!y measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 

recognised in other comprehensive income. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss 

previously accumulated in the other comprehensive income Is directly reclassified to retained earnings. 
�� . 0.�''t 11S�1'-'\ , I .  .  ,ei, 15 ch�,ct Z!i 1 .. .-c. I :·,c,,:.<,·•' ·y'" 1•1#, \,J>'. • . .  _  i., ;t;J; 
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For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income no impairments are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends on these investments in equity lnstrurnents are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in 

investment income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the 

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be 
measured reliably. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of dassifying as amortised cost or fair value through other 

comprehensive income described above, or that meet the criteria but the entity has chosen to designate as at 
FVTPL at initial recognition, are measured at FVTPL. 

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an investment 

that is not held for trading at FVTOCI at initial recognition. 

Financial assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding transaction costs. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on 
remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit and 

loss in investment income when the Company's right 10 receive the dividends is established, it is probable that 

the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend 
can be measured reliably. 

Impairment of financial assets 

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit loss is recognised for debt 
instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCI. For debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss 

allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not 

reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet. 

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in a way that reflects: 
• an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible 

outcomes; 

• the time value of money; and 

• reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting 

date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

At each reporting darn, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased 

significantly since initial recognition. 

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial 

instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the 

date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without 
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12· 
= month expected credit losses. If, the credit risk on that financial instrument has increase" sig tly since 

/ " ' � � :-;::  
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrume['lt)�.f�fiamou.,fl}?' .Aua! to 

J, -� : \ ' --"'\ \\ 
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The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financlal liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. 

Compound instruments 

The component parts of compound Instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Company are 
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing 
market interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an 
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method unti! extinguished upon conversion or at the 
instrument's maturity date. The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability 
component from the fair value of the compound 'instrument as a whole. This ls recognised and Included In 
equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 

Finoncial l..iabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at fVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities', 

Financial Liabilities ot FVTPL 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

• it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 

.. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company 
manages together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; 

or 

• it Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may also be designated as at FVfPL upon 
initial recognition if: 

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would otherwise arise; or 

• the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is 
managed and lts performance rs evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's 

documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company rs provided 
internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS 109 Financial 

Instruments permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL. �Q\)?.\A � ,a 
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising an remeasurement 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount of change in the fair value of the 

financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

The net gain or loss recognised In the statement of profi t and loss incorporates any Interest paid on the 
financial liability. 

Other Financial liabllities 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
with int.erest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of 
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of tbe financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

XJ Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary 
course of business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 months or less from the 

reporting date (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, If longer), they are classified as current assets 
otherwise as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using effective 
interest method, less provision for impairment. 

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition. 

XII Trade Payabfes 

Trade Payables are liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial 
year which are unpaid. They are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

XII) Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) 

and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective 
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised at transaction costs of the 
loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In the case, the fee is 
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of 
the facility wlll be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a repayment for liquidity services and amortised over 
the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses). 



Borrowings are classified as current financial Hebtnnes unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a 
material provision of a long-term !oan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the 

effect that the liability becomes repayable on demand on the reporting date, the entitiy does not classify the 

liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial 

statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

XIII) Foreign Currency Transactions 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial statements are presented 

in Indian National Rupee (),which is the company's functional and presentation currency. 

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at the foreign exchange rate on the 

date of transaction. 

b) Monetary items of current assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of the 

financial year are revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year. 

c) the gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, 

in case of monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the statement of 

Profit and Loss. 

XIV) Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on current period's taxable income based 

on the applicable income tax rates for the jurisdiction. 

Current tax an deffered tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates 

to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current Income Tax 

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end 

of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Management evaluates periodically positions taken with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, wherever appropriate, on the basis of 

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

XIV) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognised if 

i) the business has present lega! or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; 

ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 

iii) the amount of obligation has been reliably estimated 

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are 

discounted to reflect its current va!ue using a current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the 

increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
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Contingent Uabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate 
of the amount cannot be made. 

Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company. 

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

XVI} Employees Benefit Expenses 

a) Short Term Obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are 
recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet. 

b) Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees rendered the related service. They are, therefore, 

measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the. end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in the actuarial assumptions are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

Under Jnd AS, re-measurements of defined benefit plan are recognised in the Balance Sheet with a 

corresponding debit or credit to equity through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Under Ind AS, an 
entity is permitted to transfer amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The 

Com pany has taken recourse of the said provision and has transferred as at the date of transition to Ind 

AS. 

XVII} Dividend 

Provision is made for the amount of any final dividend declared, being appropriately authorised in the Annual 

General Meeting and no longer at the discretion of the Company. 

Interim Dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors. 

XVIII} Edrnings Per Share 

Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss of the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares oustanding during the period. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Company's Earnings Per Share is the net profit or loss for the period. The 
weighted average number of equity shares oustanding during the period and all periods presented is adjustec:I 
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the 

number of equity shar�s outstanding, without a. correspondlr.g cha�ge in �esou�����urpose of 
calculat1ng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or_loss fa� the penod_ att�1but �r:-;t};.qt{if'(�{\\eholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstandmg durmg the penod rs ad ,�ii{�f--t�� �,e�ts of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. ·"7-- \ _:i_c.:c-�;.mb)/; )I 

j-,\ /Vi/I 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31.03.2019 , , , • , 

(A) INVESTMENTS (Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income) 

{I) Investment in Equity Instrument (Quoted) 

,, Tea Time Ltd. 
,, Phosphate Co. Ltd. 
,, Northern Projects Ltd 
,, Asutosh Enterprnes Ltd. 
S) Neptune Exports Ltd 
,, Orient International Ltd 
,, Bengal Steel Industries ltd 
,, WPIL Ltd. (Associate) 
,, Ador Welding Ltd 

"' 
Parsvnath Developers Ltd 

Total (i) 

(ii) Investment in Equity Instrument {Unquoted) 

1) Hlndusthan Parsons Ltd. 
2) H. S M. International Pvt Ltd 
3) Tamilnadu Alkaline Batteries Ltd. 
4) Spaans Babcock India Ltd (Associate) 
5) Bengal Central Budding Society Ltd. 
6) Kabrnr Papers Ltd., 111 Llqurdatton 
7) AKA washenes India Pvt. Ltd. 
8) Huwood Htndusthan Pvt. Ltd 
9) Macneill Electricals Ltd. 

10) V N Enterprises Lrrmted 

Total (ii) 

(iii} Investment in Govt. Securities (NSC} 

Total (i + ii +iii) 

1,14,000 

26,400 

1,39,900 

1,50,000 

2,30,500 

1,65,000 

3,45,000 

38,61,659 

5,00,000 

1,52,500 
3,00,000 

25,000 

10,000 

42,135 
,,ooo 

,,ooo 

'" 

100.13 1,14,000 100 13 
41.64 26,400 41.64 

112.83 1,39,900 112.83 
SS.BS 1,50,000 55.85 

138.25 2,30,500 138.25 
47.22 1,65,000 47 22 
69.03 3,45,000 69.03 

357.48 38,61,659 357.48 

,,ooo '19 
922.43 923 62 

57.30 5,00,000 56 20 
7.46 1,52,500 7.47 
,.oo 3,00,000 '00 
2.50 25,000 a.so 

0.56 10,000 0.59 

42,135 
0.02 ,,ooo 0.02 
1.21 a.ooo 1.00 
0.01 918 0.01 

72.05 70.79 

0.15 0 1S 

994.63 994.55 

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Aggregate value of Quoted Investments 

Cost 

• 
sas 

Market Value 

32,140.59 

Cost 

• 
410 

Market Value 

20,243 22 

Current Portion 
Non- Current Portion 

Considered Good - Secured 

Considered Good - Unsecured 
Having Signlftcant increase In Credit Risk 

Credit Impaired 
Doubtful 

Total 
Loss Allowance 
Total Unsecured Trade Receivable 

682.60 

682.60 

682.60 

44.46 

727.06 

(44.46) 

682.60 

837 44 

837 44 

837.44 

44 46 

88190 
{44 46) 
837 44 

Bank Deposits with Maturity more than 12 months ------''s'c·'='' I --- .----�'c='' i-::::,::::::::::_::::::::::::::::::::.:.:::::::::::::::::-_ -.j �;.-;� :cs 

Total Non Current Other Non Financial Assets -----='o9c,55 " 0  "'i. ·� 1·".c''.,-_ •s·o's' . p; 0--� --...' '- 
� /'-,,,.- -, Yo"'�\ 
- '> ' ' 
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Notes to Stcmda/one Financial Sfatemenl'"As Af31 03.2019' ',. ,·' ' · ;·,,"'"" ".. 'i, ·· . ' ' ' 
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(t In !akhsl 

li<'J;'.'A!iiAtJt L' 

Deffered Tax Asset/ (liability) {113.66) (109 43) 

Total {113.66) (109.43) 

Advances - Non Current 

Mat Credit Entitlement 

Security Deposits 

1.27 

11.47 

78.57 

1.27 

1147 

78.57 

Total 91.30 9130 

Raw Material 

Work In Progress 

Finished Goods 

Tools & Implements 

Trnded Goods 

Total 

426.65 

319.43 

196.89 

942.97 

557 76 

709.72 

38:671 
1,306.15 



HINDUSTHAN UDYDG LTD ' ' ' ' ',, ' ' 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement As At 31.03.2019 

Balances with Bank 

- In Current Account 

Cash on Hand 

Total 

729.39 

14.34 

743.74 

44.24 

8.48 

52.72 

Accrued Interest 

Bank Deposits With Maturity more than 3 months less than 12 months 

Total 

0.14 

43.54 

43.68 

0.14 

29.07 

29.22 

Advance payment of Income Tax (Net) 

Advance Sales Tax 

Total 

136.80 

2.57 

139.36 

107.97 

2.57 

110.54 

Advances to Staff (Unsecured- Considered Good) 

Advances to Others 

Security Deposit 

Prepaid Expenses 

Service Tax Receivable 

Other Receivables 

Total 

8.68 7.01 

4,631.03 5,055.15 

12.79 12.79 

3.52 6.62 

0.16 

11.69 
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Notes tq_ Standalone Finanda/ St�t�ment As At 31l03.iiJ11{ : , ' . '"' , 
('tin lakhs 

4,850.00 4,850.00 
each 600.00 600.00 

5,450.00 5,450.00 

717.67 717.67 

717.67 717.67 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Shares 

71,76,725 Equity Shares oft 10/- each, fully paid 

Total 

{A) I Equity Share Capital 

Authorised Shares 
485,00,000 Equity Shares of� 10/- each 

60,00,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of� 10/- 

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning & at the end of the reporting period 

At the beginning of the period 
Issued during the period 

Outstanding at the end of the period 

71,76,725 

71,76,725 

718 

718 

71,76,725 

71,76,725 

718 

718 

b. i:erms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has one Class of Shares issued, Equity Shares having a par value of� 10/- each. Each Equity Shareholder is ellglble 

for one vote per share held.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are 

eligible to receive the assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding. 

c. The Company does not have any Holding Company, ultimate Holding Company or Subsidiary Company. 

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company 

Equity Shares of� 10/- Each 

1. V.N. Enterprises Limited 16,59,625 23.13 16,59,625 23.13 
2. Poonam Jhaver 10,00,000 13.93 10,00,000 13.93 
3. Bengal Steel Industries Limited 5,98,600 8.34 5,98,600 8.34 
4 Tea Time Limited 5,94,600 8.29 5,94,600 8.29 
5. Neptune Exports limited 5,90,400 8.23 5,90,400 8.23 
6. Orient International Limited 5,46,850 7.62 S,46,850 7.62 
7. Asutosh Enterprises Limited 4,57,500 6.37 4,57,500 6.37 
8. Prakash Agarwal 5,16,200 7.19 5,16,200 7.19 

e. 

,. For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at the Balance Sheet is prepared: 
No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being receive 
No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares. 
No Shares has been bought back by the Company. 
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(a) Security Premium 

As per Last Balance Sheet 

(b) Revaluation Surplus 
As per Last Balance Sheet 
Less : Transferred to Retamed Earnings 

Closing Balance 

(c) General Reserve 

As per Last Balance Sheet 

(di Special Capital Incentive 
As per Last Balance Sheet 

(e) Capital Reserve 
As per Last Balance Sheet 

(fl Retained Earnings 
As per Last Balance Sheet 

Add: Transfer from Revaluation Surplus 

Profit for the Year 
Closing Balance 

(gl Other Comprehensive Income 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Effect of Conversion to Ind AS 

Movement in OCI during the year 

Closing Balance 

Total 
Nature and PurHose of Reserve 

138.41 

48.45 

48.45 

121.62 

30.00 

138.41 

48.45 

48.45 

121.62 

30.00 

3,908.28 3,908.28 

(2,036.24) (2,139.95) 
(16L55) 103.72 

{Z,197.78) (2,036.24) 

426.68 415.70 
(8,51) 10.98 

418.17 426.68 
2,467.15 2,637.21 

a) Securities Premium 
Securities Premium is the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with 
the provision of the Act. b) Revaluation Surplus 
Revaluation Reserve arises on account of revaluation of Land. c) General reserve 

-----... General reserves is part of retained earnings of company which are kept aside p..1:rf-,rilCo'rrfpany's profits to 
I',., :x_i.;J',. cz _/;. '" meet future obligations. /'�;;:--�,:�\ 

. . . /t;- . .,.-,\\ d) Special Capital Incentive if ,.J r•t,·,Q$·,r; , :,..'. \\ 
j "'(j V ,� ,, I " '  j' Special Capita! arises on account of Business Comination. l\'::?. \AC�(, ... c-.' : .; 1) 

c) Capital Reserve -', J, \ / /; ;! •\ ;,,'-._ f ,I 

Catftal Reserve arises on account of Business Combination. ''-...·k: 1, 7"'� ��:/ ',"'.. t;:-rlr,.o • ,. 
[) Retained Earnings . .._�:�.�� 

Retained Earnings is the present accumulated profits/{losses) earned the Company and remaining 
undistributed as on date. 

g) FVTOCI Reserve 
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity instruments along with remesurement of Defined Benefit plans through other comprehensive income. This changes are 
accumulated within the FVTOCI Reserve. 



'HINDUSTHAN UDYDG l TD , ' ·, • .-,, > • .  "  '  '  '  '  ·  

Notes to Standalone Financial Stateme�t As At 31.03.2019 · 

(A) BORROWINGS 

Unsecured 

Preference Shares 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 

Total 

472.14 

1.17 

473.31 

(� in lakhs) 

561.09 

1.17 

562.26 

(BJ TRADE PAYABLES 

CURRENT 

Trade Payables 

<Total Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises"' 

<total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 

Enterprise & Small Enterprises* 

Total 

NON-CURRENT 

Retention Payable to Contractor 

Total 

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 

end of each accounting year (but within due date as per the MS MED Act). 

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 

2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during the accounting year. 

the amount" of Interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been 

paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid), 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small ente-crtse, for the 

purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23. 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

5.44 

430.49 

435.93 

5.44 

0.52 

505.86 

505.86 

Nil 

Nil 

NIL 

NIL 

Nil 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statement A� At 31.03..�019 , , " 

(CJ OTHER.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Deferred liability of Preference Shares 

Total 

79.84 

79.84 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

- Provision for Gratuity 

- Provison for Leave Encashment 

Total 

164.26 

33.64 

197.90 

145,90 

31.15 

177.05 
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Notes to Standalore Financial Staterrient As At'3l.03.2019 , 

(A) BORROWINGS 

Loans Repayable on demand (Unsecured) 

•From Banks 

- Cash Credit Facilities (Secured} 

Inter Corporate Deposits (Unsecured) 

Vehicle Loan 

(i) From Banks " 

Total 

12.50 

12.50 

49.82 

1,350.00 

29.58 

1,429.40 

• The Loan is secured by hypothecation of Motor vehicles and is repayable in monthly instalments. 
Rate of Interest : 

Car Loan J - 10.25% (Repayable in 5 No. of Installments) 

(B) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Deferred Liability of Preference Shares 45.56 35.69 

Interest on ICD Payable 90.88 17.98 

Advances from Customers 

Other Payables 2.75 2.38 

Payable to Employees 46.35 44.35 

Total 185.53 100.40 

Advance from Customers 

Deposits From Contractors 

Statutory Dues Payable 

- Provident Fund 

- Employee State Insurance Fund & Labour Welfare Fund 

- Goods & Services Tax 

* c. G. S. T. Payable 

* S. G. S. T. Payable 

* I. G. S. T. Payable 

- Tax Deducted At Source 

- Professional Tax 

Advance From Others* 

Total 

* Includes from WPIL Limited (Associate) 

3.00 9.37 

4.88 4.88 

4.68 8.01 

1.05 1.89 

7.55 8.03 

7.55 8.03 
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Provision for Employee Benefits 

- Provision for Gratuity 

- Provison for Leave Encashment 

Other Short Term Provtson (Trade & Other Issues) 

Total 

14.12 

2.51 

16.63 

12.97 

2.70 

15.67 
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Notes to the Standalone Financia(Statemeq,tjor thtr;,.Year: E(lded 31.03.2019, 

(tin lakhs) 

A) Revenue from Sale of Products 

B) Other Operating Revenues 

Scrap Sales 

Sub Total (A) 

Sub Total (B) 

Total (A+ B) 

1,628.03 

1,628.03 

8.77 

8.77 

1,636.80 

2,632.95 

2,632.95 

1.74 

1.74 

2,634.69 

(al Interest Income 

- Of Preference Share amortised through FVTPL 47.09 46.03 

(bl Dividend Income 

- Dividends from quoted equity investments measured at fair value through 0.15 
OCI* 

- Dividends from Associate Companies 154.47 77.23 

(cl Other Non Operating Income 

- Income From Security Deposits 3.03 3.23 

- Income From Fixed Deposit 8.42 1.10 

- Profit From Sale of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) 0.80 

- Lease Rent 239.51 189.51 

- Profit on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 3.17 2.58 

- Sundry Balances Written Back {Net) 0.50 29.10 

- Sale of Export Licence 24.66 

- Misc. Receipts 15.72 

(di Other Gains & Losses 

- Profit on Sale of Shares measured at FVTPL 0.06 2.71 

Total 471.96 377.10 
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Notes tp the Standalone Financial SJateme'nt '/t>f. tiJe Ye_ar Ended 31.03.2019 , 

Raw Material Consumed 331.54 467.36 

Stores Consumed 227.23 347.19 

Power & Fuel 197.21 213.83 
Carriage Inward 0.05 

Total 755.98 1,028.43 

Stock at the Beginning of the Year 

Finished Goods 

Work-in-Progress 
Saleable Scrap 

Total 

Stock at the End of the year 

Finished Goods 

Work-in-Progress 

Saleable Scrap 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,Work In Progress and Saleable Scrap 

707.68 

707.68 

319.43 

319.43 

388,25 

119.49 

622.11 

741.61 

707.68 

707.68 

33.92 

Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances* 

Contribution. to Provident Fund, Gratuity, ESI & Other Fund 

Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

* Includes Director's Remuneration oft 30,00,000 (P.Y. - t 16,50,000) 

436.36 

66.52 

14.12 

516.99 

479.54 

80.13 

22.21 

581.89 



Interest 

(ii Interest cost on financial Liabilities measured at amortirnd cost 

- on borrowings from banks 

- on MSME dues 

- on preference shares calculated as per Effective Interest Method 

Total 

92.10 

0,52 

47.86 

140.47 

100.52 

46.33 

146.84 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 

Total 

111.29 

111.29 

123.73 

123.73 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOii l TD . . . ; . . . " ' . " . . 
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C o m p o n e n t  Processing Expense 

Selling & Distribution Expenses 

Freight & Transportation 

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 

Rates & Taxes 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Repairs to Plant & Machinery 

Repairs to Others Assets 

Travelling Expenses 

Inland Travelling 

Foreign Travelling 

Auditors' Remuneration 

- Audit Fees 

- Tax Audit Fees 

- Certification/Limited Review Fees 

Commission, Discount & Rebates 

Legal & Professional 

Inspection & Testing Expense 

Excise Duty 

Sales Tax 

Service Tax 

Swachh Bharat Cess 

Krishi Kalyan Cess 

CGST 

SGST 

!GST 

Director Meeting Fees 

Service Charges 

Liquidated Damages 

Electricity Charges 

Factory Electric Charges 

Rent 

Factory Godown Rent 

Bank Charges 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Conveyance Charges 

Export licence 

Vehicle Maintenance 

Service Tax Input Written Off 

Sundry Balances Written Off 

Printing & Stationery 

Postage, Telegram & Telephone 

Insurance 

Listing Fees 

Bad Debts 

Donation & Subscription 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

28.06 

0.22 

15.12 

20.61 

5.76 

3.93 

3.17 

2.95 

0.25 

19.61 

8.06 

0.20 

32.45 

9.23 

1.69 

0.98 

14.62 

3.16 

4.46 

5.17 

13.37 

28.68 

1.58 

3.09 

5.13 

3.25 

3.30 

1.84 

11.00 

357.33 

52.78 

0.72 

30.22 

39.24 

9.70 

33.22 

6.70 

1.65 

3.47 

0.07 

(6.66) 

0.71 

0.01 

0.00 

0.00 

(8.55) 

(8.55) 

(2.49) 

0.20 

57.45 

23.89 

4.69 

25.10 

3.21 

44.46 

5.92 

24.66 

14.23 

17.97 

2.38 

6.62 

7.35 

3.01 

2.36 

15.07 

654.04 



H/NDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD , 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3l5T MARCH, 10J9 

Note: 24 NOTES 

24.1 Contingent Liabilities 

a) Letters of Guarantee outstanding as at 31.03.2019 is� 43.77 Lacs (Previous Year - "t 38.43 Lacs) 

b) Claim not acknowledged as debts: - Disputed demand for Sales Tax 't 131.32 Lacs {Previous Year - { 131.32 Lacs) 

appealed against. 

c) VAT Case filled for the year 2007-08 of Rs 62.70 Lakhs 

24.2 Related Party Disclosures: 

i) Relationship 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & their Relatives 

a) Mr. V.N. Agarwal Managing Director 

bJ Mr. Prakash Agarwal Director- Son of Mr. V.N. Agarwal 

c) Mrs. Premlata Agarwal 

d) Mrs. Ritu Agarwal" 

Director· Wife of Mr. V.N. Agarwal 

Director - Wife of Mr. Prakash Agarwal 

Entreprise Having Significant Influence 

V.N. Entreprise Limited 
Macneill Electricals Limited 

Associate Company 

WPIL Limited (WPIL) 
Spaans Babcock India Ltd. 

ii) l[ansaction1:t with Related Patties (fin 1akhsl 

li(JJJjf i1Jl\l't ::;1:1i11���1w?'<;�fu� l ,.,w,· , .. ,:·w, ,,.,;,,';r'·iwiltttr'I\ ·1ii·,r-l�[l·,;\l,ml1:- ' ''!"' l 'WP.'" !"'r' '" :,;1&111Wfr�\l�11t 'hi!: �,..Jl,1l·1}illt1� afj;ff.R\;llJjl { . i11;1i;i;;:1iilJ!Ullliihil'li1itiuUI mWiil1:1il tU!Vi�;H;1;!!!il1 mr,,·li . tu 11, ,,,i: '1 ,., .,,.,,, 

• l:ti.J1_'·nJ11 J: 11!f!fo ,·!P, 1 ;fiiir': H 
a 1 l\•�l'.,",,,,;. ' .,,·.:::;,1 , 1•!1.,r:,-:, , • ., -.,;.1•m 11 . ·" ,,, • , n. ,..,,,,., 1!.-:,1.i'!;, "'·• t ., .:. :,,., ' ',. 1,:J':.:,, . 

Sales & Services 1,014.61 ' 

(1,84653) 

Purchases 32.79 ' 

(14,59) 

Dividend Receipts 154.47 ' 

(77.23) 

Lease Rent Receipts 215.40 ' 

(132.00) 

Managerial Remuneration· Mr. V.N. Agarwal ' 30.00 
(16.50) 

Directors Sitting Fees ' 0.20 
(0,20) 

Trade Receivables 203.16 ' 

(416 20) 

• All receivables and payables are subject to confirmatmn. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATE(yIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Details of Advances Given and Recieved During the year from Reated Parties 

WPIL limited Opening Balance 2,850.00 

Capital Advance Taken 1,350.00 2,850.00 

Avance Refunded 

Closing Balance 4,200.00 2,850.00 

V.N. Enterprises Limited Opening Balance 3,228.25 393.25 

Performance Deposit Given 1,438.01 2,852.17 

Avance Refunded 366.26 17.17 

Closing Balance 4,300.00 3,228.25 

Spaans Babcock India ltd. Opening Balance 

Advance Given 38.25 3.25 

Avance Refunded 38,25 3.25 

Closing Balance 

Macnetll Electricals limited Opening Balance 1,045.00 59550 

Advance Given 111.50 449.50 

Avance Refunded 1,156.50 

Closing Balance 1,045.00 

"'Resigned with effect from 28.09.2018 

24.3 Segment Reporting 

The operation of the Company relates to Single Primary Business Segment Le. Engineering (Steel Castings & Alloys). 

Accordingly, there is no primary business segment. However, Information about Segment based on geographical 

location of the Customers l.e. Domestic & Ellport Sales have been provided:- 

·India 

- Outside India 

1,059.05 

568.97 

1,628.03 

24.4 Considering the external and internal impairment indicators, the management is of the ccrruon that no asset has been 

impaired as at atst March, 2019. Cons.equently, no impalrment loss has been recognized in the Statement of Profit & 

loss for the year ended Sjst March, 2019. 

24.S The company has received and advance oft 4,200 Lakhs from WP!l Umlted for transfering of its Alloy and Stainless 

Steel Casting foundry unit in Nagpur. The necessary approval and formalities for the 

adjustment has been made in the financials. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD • '" ,. • , · . 
' '  ,NOTES FORMING PART OFSTANDALONE'FINANCIAl STA7JEMENTSFOR THE,YEAR ENDED3isr MARCH, 2019 , ' 

24.6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

{I) Financial instruments by category 

A. Financial Assets 
I. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Investments 

II. Measured at amortised cost 
Trade Receivables 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 

A. Financial Liabilities 
I. Measured at amortised cost 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabillties 

994.63 

682.60 

743.74 

485.81 

185.53 

994.55 

837.44 
52.72 

1,991.66 

100.40 

(II) This' section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial 
instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at fair valur and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which 
the fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the retiabi!ity of the inputs 
used in determining fair value, the entity has classified its financial instruments into 3 !evels prescribed under the 
accounting standard. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measure quoted prices 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using 
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - 
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obse rvab le market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3. 

Measured at fair value through 
Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVTOCI} 
As at 31st March 2019 
Investments 

As at 31st March 2018 
Investments 

388.85 

410.08 

922.43 

923.62 

(tin lakhs) 

1i·;U!;!1Cejie!:�'{fl,il:i 

Measured at amortised cost ,- 
,< '"Mc� 
. ---.,. , , 

0 ' for which fair value is f\ -,,:,(!:,.:<, 

t-"/ �,,. ' 

disclosed ,..,, . 

t 
\' As at 31st March 2019 " "t"t ,t-'. ,I <, < 

: ,,;,\::;!�/; 
Deferred Sales Tax Loan 1.17 ' 

\� 
••• \ , a . , ,. _  ' '117 

,, _,., ff • 

-�-_.,..,' ,, ;/ 

As at 31st March 2018 , 

0 < ' _, 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan 1.17 �.« ,< 
1.17 < < 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

24.7 No Preference Dividend ls payable to Preference Shareholders in respect of a(oresaid 10% Cumulative Redeemable 

Preference Shares as they have waived their right in respect of any Preference dividend from the date of allotment 

of these Shares till the date ohheir redemption and measured at amortised cost. These Preference Shares are due 

for redemption on 9th january, 2019 but have been extended for a period of 3 Years r.e, 9th January, 2022. 

24.8 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 2017-18 2018-19 

Earnings available for Equity Shareholder 103./2 (161.55) 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 7176725 7176725 

Earnings Per Share (basic/diluted) 1.45 (2.25) 



HfNDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

Notes to the Standolont Fmonrial Su,rements 

14.9 Oi>dos11res as requlr«tund.r Ind tan At-to11nting Sra�rd 19 on �Employee.Be,nefit,� 

A. Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company has unfunded scheme for payment of gratuity to all eli81ble employees calculated at specified number of days of last drawn salary depending upon 
tenure of servlce for e.,ch year of completed service subject to minimum five years of service payable at the time of se�ration upon superannuation or on e;,:it 
othawise. 
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts 
recognised in the batance sheet for the Post - retirement benefit plans . 

l, Chanae ln th! O.fined Benefit Obligation 

- Defined Benefit Obligation as at the beg1nnin( 

- Current Servlce Cost 

- Interest Expense or Cost 

-Actuarial {gains)/ losses arising from; 

change In demographic assumptions 

change in financ:131 aS5umptions 

experience variance 

- Past Service Cost 

- Effect of char.ge in foreign eKChange rates 

- Benefits pa(d 

-Acquisltlons Adjustment 

- Effect of business combinations or dl51)()5alS 

- Present Value of Obligation as at the end 

z. Expenses recoanised In the st1tement of Profit & Los, 

- Current Service Cost 

- Interest Expense or Cost 

-Actuarial (gams) / losses arising from: 

change in demographic a!.SUmJ)lions 

change fn financi.ll assumptions 

experience van a nee 

- Past Service Cost 

- Effect ot change in foreign emi1nge rates 

-Acquisltlons Ad1ustm,ent 

- Effect of busmess combinations or d!sposals 

Total 

3. Other Comprehensive Income 

- Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from: 

change in demographic assumptions 

chan8e In financial assumptions 

experience vartance 

Taul 

4. Actuarial Assumptions 

(al Financl,I Assumptions 

Discount rate p.a 

Salary growth rate p.a 

24.10 Previous years' f_ig� hayJ. �en1��ajir;!);rranged, wherever necessary. 
FORSA��lli.�Er{jlljv.·• • • 
CHARTEREO ACCOUNTANTS 

Form JCAI R,g. No. 301113E ...... 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company"), and its associates, which comprise the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company, and its associates as at March 31, 2019, of consolidated 
profit, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company, and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICA1 and 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial Statements: 

(a) Note No. 2 to the Financial Statements which describes that no provision for amortization has been 
made for long term Leasehold Land at Durgapur. 

(b) The company filed a lawsuit against Mahana di Coalfields Ltd. For recovery of 'f 91.93 lacs at Cuttack 
High court for which no provision has been made in the accounts. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. .,--:=::=,....., 

;��u� 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in outt��r�l__t)\ {/;;,.(,,'!� �, \ -, \\ 

n . '(.,"'CJ\, ' 'I 

\'-
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
lf, based on the work we have periormed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statement. 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated 
cash flows of the Company including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company and of its 
associates entities are responsible for assessing the ability of Company and of its associates to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the company and of its associates are responsible for overseeing the 
financial reporting process of the Company and of its associates. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company and it's associate's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and it's associates to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolldated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Company and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial stateme hich have 
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the directj !i'{\-&liPE!EV� and 
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our a{4J_'.�}>��'?� 

(; ,c;;: t (�' , ''"'"Cd \�/\I .\, .-l ! -� .1,: 1,;� H 
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

(a) The consolidated financial statements also include the Company's share of net profit oft 49,67,39,702 and 
Other Comprehensive Income of� (2,81,86,880) for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as considered in the 
consolidated financial statements, in respect of two associates, whose financial statements I financial 
information have not been audited by us. This financial statements I financial information has been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of 
this associates, and our report in terms of sub-sectlcn (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the 
preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory 
auditors of its associates company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the company, its 
associates companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31,1 March, 2019 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
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With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure-A". 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements - Refer Note 24.1 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements. 

(ii) The Company and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

(iii) There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E 

t\ T • 1 

r - i n a r  

F 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2019 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2103 {"the Act") 

(Referred to Paragraph Z(f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement.; of our Report of even 
date to the members of Hindusthan Udyog Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindusthan Udyog Limited 
("the Holding Company") and its associates as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial re'µorting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, and deemed 
to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financ ial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND 
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting. �� 
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Salarpuria fl Partners 
CHARTERED ACCONTANTS 

7, C. R AVENUE, KOLKATA- 700 072 

Phone : 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410 
website : www.salarpuriajajodia com 

e-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail com 
office@sa I a rpu riaj a j odia. com 

Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

tn our opinion, the Holding Company, its Associates has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143{3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 2 Associate company, which are company 
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such company incorporated in India. 

For Salarpuria & Partners 

Chartered Accountants 

N l"""ICA>B�E"a �o._302H3E , 
lldi' 1\.ctl •_J,:::.111 l'Jaya.t{ 

c: 

Place: Kolkata. 
Date: 30.05.2019 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG l TD 

CO/IJSOL/OATW BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2019 

CIN No •• L271JOW81947PLC015767 

"' 
NON CURRENT AS5ETS 

l•l Propertv, P�t arid Equipment 2 1,237.90 1,340.68 
(b) Cilpltil Work hi Progress o.ar 

1,1 lln1nd1I Aue ts 

(i) lnvestmenu 3{1) 15,897.80 11,366.66 
!Iii Trade Receillahles 3(bJ 
(Hi) Othen; 3(c) 19.55 s.as 

(di Oeletf.edTax Assets {N�I 
' 

1,1 Other Non- Current Assets s 91.30 ..... 

Tot.>l (1) 17,246.55 12,804.80 

121 CURRENT ASSETS 

l•I Inventories 6 942.97 1,306.15 
lb) Flna.ncllll Assets 

l•l Trade Receivables 3(bl 682.60 837.44 

Iii Cash & Cash Equi'lllent:s 7(,) 743.75 52.72 
(Ill) Othen; 7(b) 43.68 29.U 

1,1 C11rren1 TaxAssel (Net) 8 139.36 110.54 
(d) Other Current Assets 9 4,656.26 5,093.43 

Tot.i (bJ 7,208.62 7 429.SO 

Tota!Asseb 24,45S-17 20,234.30 

{l} EQUITY 

{a) Share Caplt.il 

(b) Other Equity 

Totill Equity 

lO(A) 

10{6) 

717.67 

17,348.S4 

18,066.21 

117 67 
12,967.54 

13 705.21 

(2) UABIUTlES 
Non Current Uabllltiei 
(ii) Fimmcl;,I Utbwltle,. 

(1) 6orrowlniµ U(a) 

(iii) Other finant,11 uab�ilie5 ll{t) 

(b) Provisions 12 
(cl Deferred Tax Li;,iblbtiei; (Net) 4 

(3) Current �illtles 

la) fir...Mial Uabilitles 
lil �ocrowings 13(1) 
{Ii) Trade"Payables ll(b) 

Total OutastandinB dues of Micro, SmaH and Medium Entuprl!e 

Total Outastanding dl.lM or credllon other than Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprl5e 

(�� Other Financial Liabilities 
(bl Other Current Llabtlrtl..s 
{c) Provl.$lons 

Total u,bi11t11s 

Toi.ill 'Eq11lty and Uabllltles 

473,32 ..,,. 

7!1.15 
197.90 rnos 

113.66 109.43 

.164.72 848.74 

lHO 1,429.40 

, ... 

430.49 505.86 

185.53 100.40 

4,871.65 3,629.02 
16.63 lS.67 

5,524.24 5 680.35 

6,388.% 6,529.o9 

24,455.17 20 234.30 

" 15 

13(b) 

1'11te: Kolka1i';,� : , 
Oate, '3 o � e S - '\.-.I \  

1&24 

Direct on; 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 
C/N No.: L27120WB1947PLC015767 

I. Revenue from Operations 
II. Other income 

Ill, Total Revenue (I +II) 

V. Profit/{Loss) before Tax & Exceptional Items and Tax (Ill· IV) 
VI. Profit from Associate Company 

VII. Exceptional Item 
VIII. Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V ·VI) 
IX. Tax Expense: 

1 Current Tax 
2 Tax for earlier years \Net) 
3 Deferred Tax 

Net Current Tc1x (VIII) 

X. Profit/(Loss) for the Period (VII· VIII) 

Xl Other Comprehensive Income for the period 
(A) (t) )tern that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

-+Changes in Fair valuettcn of Equity Instrument 
-+Remeasurement of Defined benefit Plans 

Share of OCI of Associates 

{1i) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss 

(BJ {i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

XII. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) 

Earnings per Equity Share (for Continuing Operation): 
(1) Basic 
(2) Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Notes 

The accompc1nying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

16 

17 

24.7 

1&24 

4,651.38 1,593.92 

IV. Expenses: 

Cost of Materials Consumed 18 

Exrne Duty & GST 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock 111 Trade and Work in Progress 19 

E.mployee Benefit Expenses 20 

Finance Costs 21 

Depredation and Amortization Expense 22 

Other Expenses H 

IV. Total Expenses 

1.02 6.01 

{5.30) 5.67 

(281.87) (117.78) 

(4-23) (0.70) 

4,361.00 1,487.12 

64.81 22.21 

64.81 22.21 

1,636.80 2,634.69 

317.49 299.86 

1,954.29 2,934.55 

755.98 l,028.43 

339.22 

388.25 33.92 

516.99 581.89 

140.47 146.84 

111.29 123.73 
357.33 654.04 

2,270.31 2,908.07 

(316.02) 26.48 

4,967.40 1,567.44 

4,651.38 1,593.92 

As per our report of even date 

For SAlARPURIA & PARTNERS 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm ICAI Reg. No.302113E 

Nihar Ran_jan 

N·R t-4-� Ch·:t"I• . .  /  '  
r, !,,·� ,: , , : ·, r. 

Place : Kolkata 

D a t e:  o - o � - � t  

�\_�� 
Company secretary 

��� 
�.""" k.� Ai="' vi� 

Directors 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD • . : • '· ' . • . ' . .  •  •  •  
3  ,Consofldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended �1.0�.101.9 " , 

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items 4,651.38 1,593.92 
Adjustment for: 

Depreciation & Amortisation 111.29 123.73 
Profit from Associate Company (4,967.40) (1,567.44) 
Dividend Received 

(0.15) 
Interest 

140.47 146.84 
Interest Income (58.54) (50.35) 
Provrsrons 

16.50 (135.15) 
Profit on sale of Shares (0.06} (2.71) 
(Prof1t)/L_oss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.80) 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes {106.35) 107.89 
Movements In Working Capital : 

lncrease/{Decrease) in Trade Payables (70.44) (35.68) 
lncrease/{Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities {105.36) 2,918.32 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 363.18 71.82 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 154.83 567.07 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial Liablltres 75.27 3.40 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 437.17 (3,473.31) 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Assets (14.27) 28.88 
{lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 0.00 23.30 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Financral Assets (14.47) {29.07) 
Cash generated from/(used in) Operations 719.57 182.61 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) (28.82) (50.21) 
Net Cash from Operating Activities 690.75 132.40 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6.04 12.64 
Interest Received 11.45 ,4.33 

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (Net) 1.00 17.79 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {13.68) {54.52) 
mvidend Received 154.47 77.38 
Increase/Decrease in Bank Deposits 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 159.28 57.61 



H/NDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.03.2019 

Interest paid (92.10) (100.52) 

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings 11.58 
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (66.91) (148.83) 

Net Cash from Financing Activities (159.00) (237.77) 

Net (Decrease}/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 691.02 (47.76) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 52.72 100.48 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 743.75 52.72 

Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

Balances with Bank 

Current Account 

Cash on Hand 

729.40 

14.34 

44.24 

8.48 

Total 743.75 52.72 

Note: 

(a) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary. 

(b) The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as per Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", as prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"), as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Place : Kolkata 

Date: '3 0 - c g - 'l..o , 9  

- 

Directors 

For and on behalf of the Board of Di 

\j_u_o�\ 
�"""' u� \\�c.w� 

� � � ' .  
Company Se�� 

( ' 

FOR SALARPURIA & PARTNERS 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
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H/NDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD. ' '· ''" ·:••' :'.''"'· :· .  .' : . 
Notes to Consol,dateJ Fmancibl Stateme�t A� 'A't.1'.31 "a3.2019' � � ' . · · 

NOTE 1. (A): CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company ("Hindusthan Udyog Limited") is an existing public company incorporated on 3rd September, 1947 under the 

Indian Companies Act, and deemed to exist withir, the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 
Trinity Plaza, 3rd floor, 84/lA, Topsia Road (South), Kolkata - 700046. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Alloy and 

Stainless Steel castings with stringent quality requirements required in Turbines, Metal Shredding, Heavy Earth Equipments, 
Pumps, Valves and Compressors and other Heavy Er:gineering Industries, It is also engaged in manufacturing of Material 

Handling Equipments of varied nature required in the Mines, Cement Plants, Power Plants and Other General Engineering 
Sectors. The manufacturing units are located in Kolkata and Nagpur. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on SSE 
Limited ("BSE") and Calcutta Stock Exchange ("CSE"). The Financial Statements are presented In lndlan Rupees. 

NOTE 1 (8) : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. 
These accounting polfdes have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial.statements. 

I) BASIS OF PREPARA TfON 

The consolidated financial statements of Hindusthan Udyog Ltd ("the Company") comply in all material aspects with 

Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Ccrnpantes Act, 2013 {"the Act"), as 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) 

Amendment Rules 2016 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure on an accrual basis. 
The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except in case of significant uncertainties 

and except for the following: 

l Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

2 Assets held for sale which are measured at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell. 

3 Defined benefit plans where plan assets are measured at fair value. 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2.019 have been approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company In their meeting held on 30th May, 2019. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. An 

operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 

equlvalents. As set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, the normal operating cycle cannot be Identified 

and hence it is assumed to have a duration of twelve months. 

Use of Estimates and Management Judgement 

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

managerrient is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabllities and 

the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates is 

recognised in the period in which the same is determ!ned. 

BASIS OF CONSOUDATION 

The consolidated financial statements includes financial statements of Hit>dusthan Udyog Limited and results of two 

associates, consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 28 - Investments in associate. The Consolidation has been done by 

following the Equity Method. 
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Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 

and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an 
investee if and onty if the Group has: 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 
investee) 

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect Its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result In control. To support this presumption and 

when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

• The Group's voting nghts and potential voting rights 

• The size of the group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting 
rights holders. 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes 

to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform 

accounting policies for like transactions and other events in simllar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses 

accounting polices other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and other 

events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in 

preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies. The 

financial statement of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn upto same reporting date as that of 

the parent company i.e year ended 31st March . An associate Is an entity In which the group has significant influence, 
but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. Interest in associate and joint ventures are 

accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs. 
Subsequent to intia! recognition the consolidated financial statements include the groups share of profit and loss and 

OCI of equity accounted investee unti! the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases When the group's 

share of losses in an equityaccounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, Including any other 

unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or 

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains on transactions between the 

group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in these entities. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an Impairment of the asset 

transferred. 

II} Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are 

inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and services tax and amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when the amount of Revenue can be reliably 
measured and It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company. 

1 Sales are recognised when significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per the contractual terms 
or on dispatch where such dispatch coincides with transfer of significant risks and rewards to the buyer. 

2 Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable 

accuracy and conditions precedent to claim our fulfilled. 

llf} Other Income: 
1 Interest lncome on Financial Assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
...---- ... � 

assets to the gross carrying amount of the Financial Asset. When calculating the �,:°\cuy�\1p_Jef:8:_S� rate, the 
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms offl.�frnancia�IJ;�\uments. 

lf�:,c, \• ·, 
{i ... � i • · 1W._:::f j : ), \: 
i
1\(�:\��� ,r.,:;,1�;-:_:�'..1? 

.\,: , • • •  _  _...  i,._· ,/ 
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'··.• . . ., . .,. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD , , "':'-'", '. , -' - ' ,  ,  '  
-  .  · , \ , , , '  ' , "' �  '  ,  

Notes to Consolrdated hnancm/Statement As,i.\131 0�.20lfJ.' . , 
. .  ,· -,..� _, . " .  .  .  

2  Dividends are recognized in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payme:nts is 
eHab!ished, it rs probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and 
the amount of the dividend can be measured rehably. 

3 Profit/Loss on sale of Investments is recognised on the contract date. 

4 Others: The Company recognizes other income (including rent and misc teceipts) on accrual basis-. However, 

where the ulti"mate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the 
extent of uncertatntv. 

IV} Property, Plant and Equipment 

a) Asset Class: 

i) Freehold land is earned al historical cost including cost that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the land, 

ii) All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/ 

amortization . Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Property, plant and equipment held for use In the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for administrative 
purposes. are stated in the balance sheet at cost, Jess any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 

accumulated impairment losses. 

The initial cost at cash price equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired compnses its purchase price, 

including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its 

working condition and location and present vafue of any obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use. Cost 

may also include effective portion on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and 
equipment recycled from hedge reserve as basis adjustment. 

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation 
of overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs and effective portion cf cash flow hedges of foreign currency 

recycled from the hedge reserve as basis adjustment. 

Subsequent expenditure on major maintenance or repairs includes the cost of the replacement of parts of assets and 

overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset is replaced and it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the Item will be available to the Company, the expenditure is capitalised and the carrying amount of 

the item replaced is derecogntsed. Similarly, overhaul costs associated with major maintenance are capitalised and 
depreciated over their useful lives where it is probable that future economic benefits will be available and any 

remaining carrying amounts of the cost of previous overhauls are derecognised. All other costs are expensed as 

incurred except the amortisation value of durgapur leasehold land Is not material. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or value of assets, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of 
leased assets {including leasehold improvements), over the lease term if shorter. The lease period is considered by 
excluding any lease renewals options, unless the renewals are reasonably certain. Depreciation is recorded using the 

straight line basis. The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any 
changes In estimate accounted for on a prospectiva basis. Each component of an Item of property, plant and 

equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of that item is depreciated separately if its useful 
life differs from the others components of the asset. 
Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their Intended use. Depreciated assets jn property and 
accumulated depreciation accounts are reta!ned folly until they are removed from service. 

The useful life of the items of PPE estimated by the management for the current and comparative period are in line 

with the useful life as per S.::hedule II of the Companies Ac!, 2013. 

,....�=-� 
VJ Disposal Dj Assets /,�:',',l..i.J\ &: -� 

//,"''· ,......--.f--'..., � An item of property, plant and equipment is derecOgnised upon disposal 01 when no fu�!_��>nomfu.���fits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on th: dispot�f Pf���i���}an it�m 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net d1sposa�p]o.,�ee�ri�,��

7
1carrymg 

amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. "-"'" �.,- "/ 
"'' "'o ., " " ... �� , .. an-;::;- 

�:..;::::::'� 



VJ) Investment Property 

Investment properties held to earn rentals or 'or capna! appreciation or both are stated in the balance sheet at cost, 

less any subsequent accumulated depreciation anri subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any gain or loss on 

disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the property and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Transfer to, or from, investment property 
isdone at the carrying amount of the property. 

VJI) Foreign currency Transactions 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates ("the functlonal currency"). The financial statements are presented in India Rupee whtch is 

HUL's functional and presentation currency. 

a) On initial recognition, .all foreign currency trenscctjcn are recorded at foreign exchange rate on the date of 

transaction. 

b) Monetary items of currents assets and lic1bilities !n foreign currency outstanding at the close of financial year are 

revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailir.g at the close of the year. 

c) The gain or loss on decrease/Increase in reporting currency due to fluctuation in foreign exchange rate, in case of 

monetary current assets and liabmties in foreign currency, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

VIII} Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of finished goods and work In progress 
includes raw materials. direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Costs of inventories include 

the transfer from equity any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials. 

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost for Nagpur Unit and FIFO for Kolkata Unit. However, the same cost 
basis is applied to all inventories of a particular class. Inventories of stores and spare perts are valued at weighted 

average cost basis after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered 

necessary. 

However, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories (finished goods, work-in-progress) 

are n.ot written down below the cost if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to sell at or below 

the cost. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling pnce for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and 

costs necessary to make the sale. 

IX) Financial Instruments 

All flnancial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset is under a contract whose term 
requires delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are 

initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are classified as at fair 

value through profit or loss (FVTPL) at inception. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured In their 

entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. 

Clossi{tcotion of Finan<:ial Assets 

Financial assets are classified as 'equity instrument' if It is a non-derivative and meets the definition of 'equity' for the 

issuer. AU other non-derivative financial assets are 'debt Instruments'. 
Financial assets ot amortised cost and the effective interest method 

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 
• 

• 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to ;3-!'.��ntractual cash 
flows; and 0¥-1P. ,f� 
the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows ;f��i)i(e7c;ief./fp}r,ments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. t{ �( /�:•qJt�,: 1i;: \\ u'1 \ ...... , � ·•,!:;, .: : • .- 
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Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the ertecnve interest method less any impairment, with interesl 
recognised on an effective yield basis in investment income. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 

interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 

receipts (including aU fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective Interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Compa ny may irrevocably elect at Initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost 
criteria above as at FVTPL if that designation ellminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch had the 
financial asset been measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at fair value. through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments are measured at FVTOCI if both of the foll owing conditions are met: 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to collect contractual cash 
flows end selling assets; and 

• The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured Initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are 

subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising pn Remeasure,ment recognised in other 
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated 

using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in investment income. When the 

debt instrument rs derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment. 

At Initial recognition, an Irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments 

in equity instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. 

A financial asset is held fortrading if: 

• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 

together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee. 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, 
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 

comprehensive income. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated In the 

other comprehensive income is directly reclassified to retained earnings. 
For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income no impairments are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL} 

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

income described above, or that meet the criteria but the entity has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial 

recognition, are measured at FVTPL. 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVfPL, unless the Company designates an investment that is not 

held for trading at FVfOCI at initial recognition. 
Financial assets classified at FVfPL are 1nitia11y measured at fair value excluding transaction costs. 
Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses ari���elsurement 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. /-s�,,,.�---....,�>,:\ 
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Dividend Income on investments in equity Instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in 

investment income when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic 

benefits associated with the dividend w,ilflow to the ta�tity; and the amccnt of the dividend can be measured rellab!y. 

Impairment of finam:ial assets 

On initial recognition of the financial assets. a l<,SS- auowence for expected credit loss ls recognised for debt 

Instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCL For debt Instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is 

recognised in other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not reduce the carrying 

amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet. 

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in a way that reflects: 

• an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; 

• the time value of money; and 

• reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date. about 

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased 

significantly since Initial recognition. 

When making the assessment, the Company compares the ris!< of a default occurring on the flnencral tnstrurnent as at 

the reporting date wilh the risk of a default occurring on the fir.ancial instrument as at the date of inifo;/ recognition 

and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative 

oi significant Increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

If; at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 

the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial Instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses. If, the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the 

Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit 

losses. 

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the recortmg date is 

recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangement. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 

liabihties. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Compound instruments 

The component parts of compound Instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Company are classified 

separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the 

date of issue, the fair value of the liability component Is estimated usbg the prevailing market interest rate for a 
simil ar non-convertible instrument. TI1is amount Is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. The equity component is 
determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included Jn eqOity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 

--� 
Financial liabilities 4i \';.'. :':,,.7��' Financial liabUities are classified as either financial Habihties 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial !iat/rit�Y "'-(,·�·�.', 

Ii 't C' " ' ' 
Financial Liabilities at FVTPL d :i · ,,;;;;���7-: �:> ';i Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial lrabltity Is either held for tra�.'��i��i�·i;·'i1�j��1t�d as at 

� ,.::. , .. _........... '·/ 
FVTPL. ,,,:;1 •.. ; , =< ,, ::,  

',''·c"·� .,_;,, 
''::::."_-;:.�··· 



A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 

together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may also be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if: 

O such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 
otherwise arise; or 

• the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed 
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, m accordance with the Company's documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or 

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments 
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPl are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is 
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profi t and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 
liability. 

Other Financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

X) Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 
business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 months or less from the reporting date (or 
in the normal operating cycle of the business, rf longer), they are classified as current assets otherwise as non-current 
assets. 

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment. 

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition. 

XI) Trade Payables 

Trade Payables are liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year 
which are unpaid. They are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. 
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XJJJ Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net cf transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the perfcd of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees paid 
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised at transaction costs of the loan to the extent It is probable that 
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. Jn the case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee ls capitalised as a 
repayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses). 

Borrowings are classified as current financial liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material 
provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability 
becomes repayable on demand on the reporting date, the entitiy does not classify the liability as current, if the lender 
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand 
payment as a consequence of the breach. 

XIII) Foreign Currency Transactions 

Items Included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the entity operates (nthe functional currency''j. The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee 
(),which is the company's functional and presentaticn currency. 

a) On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at the foreign exchange rate on the date of 
transaction. 

b) Monetary items of current assets and liaOllities in foreign currency outstanding at the dose of the financial year 
are revalorised at the appropriate exchange rate! prevailing at the dose of the year. 

c) the gain or loss on decrease/Increase in reporting currency due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, In case 

of monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. 

XIV) Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period ls the tax payable on current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rates for the Jurisdiction. 

Current tax an deffered tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current Income Tax 

The current incorne tex is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantiyely enacted at the end of the 
reporting period m the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable Income. Management evaluates 
periodically positions taken with respect to situations ir. which a;:iplicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. It 
estabttshes provisions, wherever appropriate, o" the basis of amounts expected to be pa'd to the tax authorities. 
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XIV) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision Is recognised if 

i) the business has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; 

ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 

iii) the amount of obligation has been reliably estimated 

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the 
end of the reporting period. If the effect of time va!ue of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its 
current value using a current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage 
of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligatlon arising from past events, the existence of which 

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be reqµired to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset Is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence pf ohe or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

XVI) Employees Benefit Expenses 

a) Short Term Obl/gatlons 

Liablllties for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be 

paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the 

Balance Sheet. 

b} Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the period in which the employees rendered the related service. They are, therefore, measured at the present 

value cf the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of 

the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in the actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Under Ind AS, re-measurements of defined benefit plan are recognised in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to equity through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Under Ind AS, an entity is permitted to 

transfer amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Company has taken recourse of 

the said provision and has transferred as at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

XVII) Dividend 

Provision. ls made for the amount of any final dividend declared, being appropriately authorised in the Annual General 

Meeting and no longec at the drscrenon of the Company. 
Interim Dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors. 

XVIII) Earnings Per Share 

Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss of the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares oustanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the 

Company's Earnings Per Share Is the net profit or Joss for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares 

oustanding during the. period. and all periods presented is adjusted for events, su�h as bor_!..J��.;r �han the 
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity sharfl-'./?JJfsr;mct�t�1thout a 
corresponding change in resou�ces. For the purpose of calcu.lating diluted earnings per s�f�ft�;, �?;,grofi��{ ioss for 
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of s��r��' o,��':..,��!�E:,d.�ring the 
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. \��- . .'"-.. _//; ;/ 
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(A) INVESTMENTS (Measured at fair valUQ through Other Com,::t,hensive ln�om<1) 

(i) lnvestment in Equity lnsm.1ment (Quoted) 

,1 Tea Time Ltd. 
2) Phosphate Co. Ltd. 
,1 Northern Proiects ltd. 

•J Asutosh Enterprises Ltd 
SJ Neptune Exports Ltd. 
6) Orient International lid. 

,, �ngal Steel Industries ltd. 
BJ Ador Welding Ltd. 
9) Parsvnath Developers ltd 

Total (I) 

(ii) Investment in Equity Instrument (Unquoted) 

1,14,000 100.13 1,14,000 100.13 

26,400 41.64 26,400 41.64 

1,39,900 112.83 1,39,900 112.83 

1,50,000 SS.SS 1,50,000 SS.BS 

2,30,500 138.25 2,30,500 138.25 

1.65,000 47.22 1,65,000 47.22 

3,45,000 69.03 3,45,000 69.03 

8,000 1.19 

564.95 566.14 

1) Hindusthan Parsons Ltd. 
1) H. 5. M. 1ntematlo,ia1 Pvt. Ltd. 

3) Tarnllnadu Alkaline aattenes Ltd. 
4) Bengal Central Building Society ltd. 

5) kabini Papers Ltd, m Liquidation 
6) AKA Washeries India Pvt. Ltd 
7) Huwood Hmdusthan Pvt. ltd 
8) Macneill Electncals Ltd. 

9) V N Enterprise l•mited 

Total (II) 

(iii) Investment in Associate 
1) WPIL Umited (39.S4%) 

C.irrying Value of the Group·s !nterest In Associate 

Add: Current Vear Profit/(Loss) 
Less : Dividend 

Total 

2) Spaans Babcock India Ltd (25%) 

Carrying Value of the Group's Interest ln Associate 

Add: Cun-ent Year Profit/(loss) 

Total 

(iv) Investment In GovL Securities (NSC) 

Total {i + JI +l,ltiv} 

5,00,000 

1,52,500 

3,00,000 

10,000 

42,135 

2,000 

2,000 

918 

38,61,659 

25,000 

'7.30 5,00,000 56.20 

7.46 1,SZ,500 7.47 

3.00 3,D0,000 3.00 

O.S6 10,000 0.59 

42.BS 

0.02 2,000 0.02 

1.21 2,000 LOO 

0.01 918 0.01 

69.55 68.29 

38,61,659 

10,715.24 9,341.29 

4,672.56 1,451.1$ 

1154.47) (77.23) 

15,233.33 10,715.24 

25,000 

16.85 18.37 

ll.97 (1.52) 

29.82 16 85 

0.15 0.15 

15,897.80 11,366.66 

As at 31st March 2019 As ;it 31st March 2018 

Cost 

ns. 

Market Value Cost Mart.et Value 

"· 
Rs. Rs. 

Aggregate value of Quoted Investments 3,88,84,835 32,705.54 4,10,07,788 20,243.22 
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Current Portion 682.60 537-44 

Non- Current Portion 

682.60 837.44 

Considered Good - Secured 

Considered Good - Unsecured 682.60 837.44 

Having Significant increase H1 Credit Risi: 

Credit lmpillired 

Doubtful 44.46 44.46 

Total 727.06 881.90 

Loss Allow.ince (44.46) (44.46) 

Total unsecured 'Trade Recervable 682.60 837.44 

Bank Deposits with Maturity more than n months 

Total Non Cunent Other Non financial Assets 

19.55 

19.SS 

5.29 

S.29 



HINbU5THAfVUD'fOGlTD ,_ ", ·  ,  ,·,, ,�,,''"';,: ', ",-, ' "'° � � / > ' '  " ' "'  ,  ,  ,  '  

,  Notes to Canso/1dated Financial Statement As At 31.03.2019 , ' , , ' _ ' 
' ' 

(? in lakhs) 

Oeffered Tax Asset f {Liability) (113.66) 

(113.66) 

(109 43) 

(109.43) 

Advances, Non Current 

Mat Credit Entitlement 

security Deposits 

Total 

1.27 

11.47 

78.57 

91.30 

1.27 

11.47 

78.57 

9130 

Raw Material 

Work In Progress. 

Finished Goods 

Tools & Implements 

Traded Goods 

Total 

426.65 

319.43 

196.89 

942.97 

557.76 

709.72 

38.67 

1,306.15 
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Balances with Bank 

• In Current Account 

Cash on Hand 

Total 

729.40 

14.34 

743.75 

44.24 

8.48 

52.72 

Accrued Interest 

Bank Deposits with Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 

Total 

0.14 

43.54 

43.68 

0.14 

29.07 

29.22 

Advance payment of Income Tax (Net) 

Advance Sales Tax 

Total 

136.80 

2.57 

139.36 

107.97 

2.57 

110.54 

Advances to Staff {Unsecured· Considered Gooci) 

Advances to Others 

Security Deposit 

Prepaid Expenses 

Service Tax Receivable 

Other gecetvables 

Total 

a.es 

4,631.03 

12.79 

3.52 

0.24 

4,656.26 

7.01 

5,055.15 

12.79 

6.62 

0.16 

11.69 

5,093.43 



(A) I Equity Share Capital 

Authorised Shares 
485,00,000 Equity Shares oft 10/- each 

60,00,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of'{ 10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Shares 
71,76,725 Equity Shares oft 10/- each, fully paid 

Total 

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning & at i:he end of the reporting period 

4,850 

600 

S,450 

718 

718 

4,850 

600 
5,450 

718 

718 

At the beginning of the period 
Issued during the period 

Outstanding at the end of the period 

71,76,725 

71,76,725 

718 

718 

71,76,725 

71,76,725 

718 

718 

b. Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has one Class of Shares issued, Equity Shares having a par value oH 10/- each. Each Equity Shareholder rs eligible 

for one vote per share held.The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except m case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are 

eligible to receive the assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding. 

c. The Company does not have any Holding Company, ultimate Holding Company or Subsidiary Company 

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company 

Equity shares off 10/- Each 

1. V.N Enterprises Limited 16,59,625 23.13 16,59,625 23.13 

. 2. Poonam Jhaver 10,00,000 13.93 10,00,000 13.93 

3. Bengal Steel Industries Limited 5,98,600 8.34 5,98,600 8.34 

4. Tea Time Limited 5,94,600 8.29 5,94,600 8.29 

5. Neptune Exports Limited 5,90,400 8.23 5,90,400 8.23 

6. Orient lnternatmnal Llmited 5,46,850 7.62 5,46,850 7.62 

7. Asutosh Enterprises Limited 4,57,500 6.37 4,57,500 6.37 

8. Prakash Agarwal 5,16,200 7.19 5,16,200 7.19 

e. No Shares reserved for issue under options and contract/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment including the terms 

and amounts. 

r. 
For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at the Balance Sheet rs prepared: - , ,.:,-:::._, 

,, ' \ . .  ,. ' .,, ,·�, 
No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract{s) without payment being received )Jl};asti.· - --, '<, 

No Shares have been alloted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares. /(, >. · � ,  

No Shares has been bought back by the Company. i'. :\ \ <,:, {f '' · 
\ ' 

·. 

' 



(t in lakhs) 

(al Share Premium 

As per last Balance Sheet 

(bl Revaluation Surplus 

As per Last Balance Sheet 
Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings 
Closing Balance 

(cl General Reserve 

As per Last Balance Sheet 

(di Special Capital Incentive 

As per last Balance Sheet 

(el Capital Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

(fl Retained Earnings 

As per last Balance Sheet 
Add: Transfer from Revaluation Surplus 
Profit for the Year 
Closing Balance 

(gl Other Comprehensive Income 

As per last Balance Sheet 
Effect of Conversion to Ind AS 
Movement in OCl during the year 
Closing Balance 

Total 

Nature and Purpose of Reserve 

a) Securities Premium 

426.68 

(8.51) 

418.17 

17,748.19 

415.70 

10.98 

426.68 

13,105.32 

138.41 138.41 

48.45 48.45 

48.45 48.45 

121.62 121.62 

30.00 30.00 

3,908.28 3,908.28 

8,431.88 6,837.96 

4,651.38 1,593.92 

13,083.26 8,431.88 

Securities Premium is the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with 

the provision of the Act. 

b) Revaluation Surplus 
Revaluation Reserve arises on account of revaluation of land. 

d} Special Capital Incentive 
Special Capital arises on account of Business Comination. 

e) Capital Reserve 
Catital Reserve arises on account of Business Combination. 

f) Retained Earnings 
Retained Earnings is the present accumulated profits/(losses) earned the Company and remaining 
undistributed as on date. 

g) FVTOC! Reserve � The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investmen���ments along 
with remesurement of Defined Benefit plans through other comprehens#�0��:)·��'tanges are 
accumulated within the FVTOCI Reserve. [(")I /,0.'. � '.. J �.� 1/ 

\\ "1\ '\'· ,.., "'!··�I 
�-�· /', J/ 

•, ' 

' . 



(A) BORROWINGS 

Unsecured 

Preference Shares 

Vehicle loan 

Deferred Sales Tax loan 

Total 

472.15 

1.17 

473.32 

561.09 

1.17 

562.26 

(B) TRADE PAYABLES 

CURRENT 

Trade Payables 

N Total Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprtses " 

<Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 

Enterprise & Small Enterprises* 

Total 

NON-CURRENT 

Retention Payable to Contractor 

Total 

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 

end of each accounting year (but within due date as per the MSMED Act). 

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 

2005 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during the accounting year. 

the amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been 
paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid); 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 

purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23. 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

5.44 

430.49 

435.93 

5.44 

0.52 

Nil 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

505.86 

505.86 



HINDUSTHANUDYOGLtD
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement As At 31.03.2019 . , , , "' 

({ in lakhs) 

(C) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Deferred Liability of Preference Shares 

Total 

79.85 

79.85 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

- provrs.on for Gratuity 

- Provison for Leave Encashment 

Total 

164.26 145.90 

33.64 3115 

I ----�•c9c7c·9"'0 1 _c
1s'c'o·•ccs 



(A) BORROWINGS 

Loans Repayable on demand (Unsecured) 

•From Banks 

- Cash Credit Facilities (Secured) # 

Inter Corporate Deposits (Unsecured) 

Vehicle Loan 

(1) From Banks* 

Total 

12.50 

12.50 

49.82 

1,350.00 

29.58 

1,429.40 

• The Loan is secured by hvpothecatron of Motor vehicles and rs repayable in monthly instalments. 

Rate of Interest: 

Car Loan I - 10.25% (Repayable in 5 No. of Installments) 

{BJ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Deferred Liability of Preference Shares 

Interest on ICD Payable 

Advances from Customers 

Other Payables 

Payable to Employees 

Total 

45.56 

90.88 

2.75 

46.35 

185.53 

35.70 

17.98 

2.38 

44.35 

100.40 

Advance from Customers 

Deposits From Contractors 

Statutory Dues Payable 

- Provident Fund 

- Employee State Insurance Fund & Labour Welfare Fund 

- Goods & Services Tax 

• C. G. S T. Payable 

* S G. S. T Payable 

* I. G. S. T. Payable 

- Sales Tax Payable 

- Tax Deducted At Source 

- Professional Tax 

Advance From Others* 

* Includes. from WPIL Limited (Associate) 

3.00 9.38 

4.88 4.88 

4.68 8.01 

1.05 1.89 

7.55 8.03 

7.55 8 03 

20.SO 112.81 
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Not'estoConsolidatelFinancia!S!a.tementAsiAt31.03.'20l9, � , �. , • v � � ' f 
(fin lakhs) 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

- Provrsrcn for Gratuity 

- Provison for Leave Encashment 

Other Short Term Prcvrson (Trade & Other Issues) 

Total 

14.12 

2.51 

16.63 

12.97 

2.70 

15.57 
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Notes to ConsofidaJed Financial_Statement As:�Hf.�a�w.:gh . ,"t -,. . , , 

A) Revenue from Sale of Products 1,628.03 2,632.95 

Sub Total (A) 1,628.03 2,632.95 

Bl Other Operating Revenues 

Scrap "Sales 8.77 1.74 

Sub Total (B) 8.77 1.74 

Total (A+ B) 1,636.80 2,634.69 

(al Interest Income 

- Of Preference Share amortised through FVTPL 47.09 46.03 

(bl Dividend Income 
- Dividends from quoted equity investments measured at fair value through 0.15 

OCI"' 

(cl Other Non Operating Income 

- Income From Security Deposits 3.03 3.23 

- Income From Fixed Deposit 8.42 1.10 

- Profit From Sale of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) 0.80 

- Lease Rent 239.51 189.51 

- Profit on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 3.17 2.58 

- Sundry Balances Written Back {Net) a.so 29.10 

- Sale of Export Licence 24.66 

- Misc. Receipts 15.72 

(di Other Gains & Losses 

- Profit on Sale of Shares measured at FVTPL 0.06 2.71 

Total 317.49 299.86 
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Raw Material Consumed 
Stores Consumed 
Power & Fuel 
Carriage Inward 

Total 

331.54 467.36 
227.23 347.19 
197.21 213.83 

0.05 

755.98 1,028.43 

Stock at the Beginning of the Year 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Saleable Scrap 

Total 
Stock at the End of the year 

Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 
Saleable Scrap 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,Work In Progress and Saleable Scrap 

707.68 

707.68 

319.43 

319.43 
388.25 

119.49 
622.11 

741.61 

707.68 

707.68 

33.92 

Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowances* 
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity, ESI & Other Fund 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

Total 

"'Includes Dlrector's Remuneration oH 30,00,000 {P.Y. - r 16,50,000) 

436.36 
66.52 
14.12 

516.99 

479.54 

80.13 
22.21 

581.89 



Interest 

(;) lntecest cost on Hnantial Uab,nties measoced at amocti,ed cost 

- on borrowings from banks 

- on MSME dues 

- on preference shares calculated as per Effective Interest Method 

Total 

92.10 

0.52 

47.86 

140.47 

100.52 

46.33 

146.84 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 

Total 

111.29 

111.29 

123.73 

123.73 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stotement�,Af;3_1../i3.2fJf9r:.:, • ., ' 
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Component Pr.ocessing Expense 

Selfing & Distribution Expenses 

Freight & Transportation 

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 

Rates & Taxes 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Repairs to Plant & Machinery 

Repairs to Others Assets 

Traveiling {xpenses 

Inland Travelling 

Foreign Travelling 

Auditors' Remuneratian 

• Audit Fees 

- Tax Audit Fees 

- Certification/Limited Review Fees 

Commission, Discount & Rebates 

legal & Professional 

Inspection & Testing Expense 

Excise Duty 

Sales Tax 

Service Tax 

Swachh Bharat cess 

Krishi Kalyan Cess 

CGST 

SGST 

IGST 

Director Meeting Fees 

Service Charges 

liquidated Damages 

Electricity Charges 

Factory Electnc Charges 

Rent 

Factory Godown Rent 

Bank Charges 

Provtsson for Doubtful Debts 

Conveyance charges 

Export Licence 

Vehicle Maintenance 

Service Tax Input Written Off 

Sundry Balances Written Off 

Printing & Stationery 

Postage, Telegram & Telephone 

Insurance 

Listing Fees 

Bad Debts 

Donation & Subscription 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

' i, , ' 
' ,,_. -- ;;,· I �:.,. :•:. .. -, / 

106.41 

28.06 

0.22 

15.12 

20.61 

S.76 

3.93 

3.17 

2.95 

0,25 

19.61 

8.06 

0.20 

32.45 

9.23 

1.69 

0.98 

14.62 

3.16 

4.46 

5.17 

13.37 

28.68 

1.58 

3.09 

5.13 

3.25 

3.30 

1,84 

11.00 

357.33 

243.23 

52.78 

0.72 

30.22 

39.2:4 

9.70 

33.22 

6.70 

1.65 

3.47 

0.07 

(6,66) 

0.71 

0.01 

0,00 

0.00 

(8,55) 

(8,55) 

(Z,49) 

0.20 

57.45 

23.89 

4.69 

25.10 

3.21 

44.46 

5.92 

24.66 

14.23 

17.97 

2.38 

6.62 

7.35 

3.01 

2.36 

15.07 

654.04 



, HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD " , , , " , 
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FDR THE YEAR,ENDED 31ST MARCH, 1019 

• 1 • ' ' ' 0 

' . ' ' - , 

Note: 24 NOTES 

24.1 Contingent Liabilities 

a) Letters of Guarantee outstanding as at 31.03.2019 is'{ 43.77 Lacs (Previous Year - '( 38.43 Lacs) 

b) Claim not acknowledged as debts: - Disputed demand for Sales Tax f 131.32 lacs (Previous Year - '{ 131.32 

Lacs) appealed against. 

c) VAT Case filled for the year 2007-QB of Rs 62.70 

24.2 Related Party Disclosures: 

I) Relationship 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & their Relatives 

a) Mr. V.N. Agarwal 

bl Mr. Prakash Agarwal 

c} Mrs. Rrtu Agarwal• 

d) Mrs. Premlata Agarwal 

Managing Director 

Director - Son of Mr. V .N. Agarwal 

Director- Wife of Mr. Prakash Agarwal 

Director- Wife of Mr. V. N. Agarwal 

Entreprise Having Signifrcant Influence 

V.N, Entreprise Limited 

Macneill Electricals limited 

Managerial Remuneration - Mr. V.N. Agarwal 

Directors Sitting Fees 

Details of Advances Given and Recievcd During the year from Reated Parties 

30,00 

(16,50) 

0.20 

V.N. Enterprises Limited Opening Balar.ce 3,228.25 393.25 

Performance Deposit Given 1,438.01 2,852.17 

Avance Refunded 366.26 17.17 

Closing Balance 4,300.00 3,228.25 

Macneil/ Electricals Limited Opening Balance 1,045.00 595.50 

Advance Given 111.50 449.50 

Avance Refunded 1,156.SO 

Closing Balance 1,045.00 

*Resigned with effect from 28.09.2018 

,.._ 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF cdNSOLIDATED F�NANdicsTATEMENTS FDR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

24.3 Segment Reporting 

The operation of the Company relates tc Single Primary Business Segment i.e. Engineering (Steel Castings & 

Alloys). Accordingly, there is no primary business segment. However, information about Segment based on 

geographical location of the Customers t.e. Domestic & Export Sales have been provided:- 

Information about Secondary Segments - Geographical 

:;::J\!! '1t�J 1lliv\1,:.llil'l\';;i';,/.1,tD ''Rtlctl[ARt;;{c'��l�l\.')j S:.it}):tl-liLJ;i' �hl_h\V 
wi\� ·'"' �Rt:!J.�.u ,).t,1:11.r, '!1.'ll1 ""� ,.:t1r:.,1;"'1iw"� !'A:;'V!�-..." �- l3li!.!lill'<JJl!$i;<[ 

(i) Revenue by Geographicai Market 

- India 

- Outside India 

1,059.05 

568.97 

1,628.03 

24.4 Considering the external and inte rnal impairment indicators, the management is of the opinion that no asset has 

been impaired as at 31st March, 2019. Consequently, no impairment loss has been recognized in the Statement 

of Profit & loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 

24.5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

(I) Financial instruments by category 

A. Financial Assets 

/. Measured at fair value through other comprehensl 

Investments 

11. Measured at amortised cost 

Trade Receivables 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 

A. Financial liabilities 

I. Measured at amortised cost 

Borrowings 

Trade Payables 

Other Financial Liabilities 

994.53 

68Z.60 

743.74 

485.81 

435.93 

185.53 

994.55 

837.44 

52.72 

1,991.66 

505.86 

100.39 

{II) This section explains the Judgements and estimates made ir:> determining the fair vaiues of the financial 

instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at fair valur and (b) measured at amortised cost and for 

which the fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability 

of the inputs used in determining fair value, the entity has ctasstned its fmancial instruments into 3 levels 

prescribed under the accounting standard. 
Level 1: level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments rneasure quoted prices 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded In an active m et;�termined using 

�!;ii
})'''' 1.; I',,,, 

valuation techniques which maxrmtze the use of observable market data an :s'J%flitt1\��,·�0ssible on 

entity - specific estimates. If all significant Inputs required to fair value an i' ef!J,{�t.o��e·rrable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. �<Ji.,lic�;;},,;j; 

\;/�. ,,/,�!,! 
-, -: 

·-. - . .  - - .  



Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3. 

(f in lakhs) 
:;n:;-;;t;a .. ever�:\'if'.);. J 

Measured at fair value through 
Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVTOCI) 
As at 31st March 2019 
Investments 

As at 31st March 2018 
Investments 

31.37 

52.60 

564.95 

566.14 

Measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed 
As at 31st March 2019 
Deferred Sales Tax Loan 1.17 - - 1.17 

As at 31st March 2018 
Deferred Sales Tax loan 1.17 - - 1.17 

24.6 No Preference Dividend is payable to Preference Shareholders in respect of aforesaid 10% Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares as they have waived their right in respect of any Preference dividend from 
the date of allotment of these Shares till the date of their redemption and measured at amortised cost. 
These Preference Shares are due for redemption on 9th january, 2019 but have been extended for a period 
of 3 Years i.e, 9th January, 2022. 

24.7 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 2017-18 2018-19 

Earnings available for Equity Shareholder 1,593.92 4,651.38 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 7176725 7176725 

Earnings Per Share (basic/diluted) 22.21 64.8. 

24.8 The parent company has received and advance oft 4,200 Lakhs from WPIL Limited for acquisition of its Alloy 
and Stainless Steel Casting foundry unit in Nagpur. The necessary approval and formalities for the acquisition 
is pending no adjustment has been made in the financials. 



HINDUSTHAN UDYOG LTD 

Nott>s 10 the Consol,dorrd FinanC1ol Sto1emenrs 

24.9 Di1tlosures as r•qulred under lndl1n Accounting Standard 19 on "Employee Be,iefits" 

A. Defined Benefit Pl.an 

The Company has unfunded Wleme for payment of gratuity to all ellgible employtts alculated at specified n1.1mber of davs of last drawn $alary dependiog upon 
tenure of servce for each year of i;ompltted s.ervice .s,ubjtct to minimum fivt vears of servtee payabfe at the ttme of separation upon supl!l'"annuation or on exit 
otherwise. 
The following tabk!s summaris.e the components of net benefit expense reccgatsed in the statement of profit and loss and the fundl!d status and amounts 
recognised in rte eaance sheet for the Post - retirement benefit plaM. 

1. Chane, In the Dt!fined Senefit Oblicatlon 

- Defined Benefit Obligatlon as at the beginning 

- Current service Cost 

- Interest Expense or Cos1 

-Actuarial {gains)/ losses arising fro!T'I: 

change in demographl� assumptions 

change ,n financial auumptnms 

experience variance. 

- ?ast Service Cost 

- Effect of chang, in foreign exchange rates 

- BeMIIU paki 

-Acqu1sitio11s Adjustment 

- Effect of business ccmbinattcns or disposals 

- Present Value of Obllsatlon as at the end 

2. hpeASl!l recogniHd In the stat.mint of Prnfit & Loss 

- Curren\ S1uvice Cos\ 

- Interest repense or Cost 

-Actuarial (gams) / louei arismg from: 

cha11ge in demographic auumptions 

change in financi.11 assumptions 

experience variance 

- Past Service Cost 

- Effect of change in foreign exchange rates 

-Acquisitions Adjustment 

- Effect of busines., combinations or disposals 

Total 

3. OtherCompn!hens\111! Income 

- Actuarial (gams) / losses arising from: 

change in demographic assumptions 

change in financial as!l..lmptions 

eiiperlence vanance 

Tot.ii 

4. Actu.irial Assumptions 

(a) financial Assumptions 

Discount rate p.a 

Salary growth rate p.a 

Directors 


